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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DEAR MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 19th Annual Report of Axis Securities Limited (the
Company) along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 (hereinafter referred to as the “year under review” or “FY 2024-25”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:-

During the year, the Company achieved a total income of Rs. 1657.73 crore.

The highlights of the financial Results of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
as compared to the previous financial year ended March 31, 2024 is summarised below:

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Operating Income(A) 885.74 713.51

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits and Miscellaneous 771.99 430.47
Income (B)

Total Income (A)+(B) 1,657.73 1,143.98

Operating Expenses 1,051.75 704.98

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation & provisions for tax 605.98 439.00

Depreciation 38.81 33.08

Provision for Tax 145.62 104.72

Profit for the year 421.55 301.20

Other Comprehensive Income 56.22 23.71

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 477.77 324.91

NATURE OF BUSINESS:

During the year under review, the Company has not changed its nature of business and it remained
the same.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:-

In Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has achieved overall revenue of Rs. 1657.73 crore which is
increase of 45% as compared to Rs. 1,143.98 crore in Financial Year 2023-24. The Company has
added 8.12 lakhs accounts in FY25 as compared to 5.87 lakhs in FY24.
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DIVIDEND:

In order to conserve the resources of your Company, the Directors do not recommend any dividend
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

GENERAL RESERVE:

During the FY25, the Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves.

MATERIAL CHANGE AND COMMITMENT:-

In terms of the information required under sub-section (3)(l) of Section 134 of the Act,  it is to be
noted that no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
has occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial
Statements relate and to the date of the Directors Report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Axis Bank Limited. Further, during the year under review,
there were no Companies which have become/ceased to become a Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/
Associate Companies.

ANNUAL RETURN:-

The Annual Return of the Company for the said financial year as required under Section 92(3) and
Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 will be hosted on the website of the
Company at https://simplehai.axisdirect.in/aboutus.

The said annual return shall be updated as soon as possible but not later than sixty days from the
date of the Annual General Meeting.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

In terms of the information required under Section – 134 of the Act and Clause – 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 it is to be noted that there is no significant and material order passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in
future.

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF ELEMENTS OF RISK:

Risk Management is a key function in a Stock Broking Company. Real-time monitoring of overall
exposure of the Company is required from the point of view of Risk Control. In volatile markets,
robust Risk Management policies are must.

The Company has adopted a comprehensive Risk Management Policy identifying various elements
of risks, risk parameters and risk containment measures. The Company has automated risk
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management systems in place. The risk system monitors various trades and positions of the clients
on real-time basis with the help of real time data feeds from Exchanges. The system also generates
alerts in case of specified events based on the set parameters. A dedicated risk team monitoring
the risk systems acts promptly on such alerts. The above risk processes have been put in place for
Equities, Derivatives, Commodities and Currencies etc. Risk team also carries out periodic stress
test to ascertain the potential loss that may occur in case of an extreme market movement.

Client defaults in paying up the losses arising out of client positions poses significant risk, which in
the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. Other identified risks are
system malfunction, black swan event, Internal as well as external frauds, adverse regulatory action
against the Company etc.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:-

The Company has an Internal Control System commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
its operations. Internal control systems comprising of policies and procedures are designed to ensure
reliability of financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic
goals, compliance with policies, procedure, applicable laws and regulations and that all assets
and resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and protected adequately.

The Internal Audit and Inspection Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy
of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of internal audit
function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Committee of the Board. A yearly presentation on Internal Financial Control Systems is
also presented to Audit Committee of the Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:-

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for employee, customers, vendors and also for its
Directors for the highest degree of transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social
responsibility. Any actual or potential violation of the Code would be a matter of serious concern
for the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has also put in place, a Whistle
Blower policy which enables employees to report about actual or potential illegal and/or
unacceptable practices. The policy is designed to enable employees, to raise concerns to
Whistleblower Committee, without revealing his/her identity, if he/she chooses to do so and to
disclose information which the individual believes, shows malpractice or wrongdoing which could
affect the business or reputation of the Company.

The Policy is to provide framework for an effective vigil mechanism and to provide protection to
employees, customers, vendors or directors reporting genuine concerns.
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Employees of the Company are encouraged to use guidance provided in the Policy for reporting
all allegations of suspected improper activities to the Whistle Blower Committee by sending the
members an email on whistleblower@axissecurities.in

The whistle blower complaints were reviewed by the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. During
the year under review, 3 (three) complaints were received by the Company and have been
reported to the Whistle Blower Committee. The same have been reported to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MEETINGS, AND EVALUATION:-

Board of Directors:-

The composition of the Board is in accordance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with an appropriate combination of Executive, Non-executive and Independent Directors.
The Board of the Company comprises of Eight Directors, consisting of Four Independent Directors
(including one Women Director), three Non-Executive Directors and a Managing Director as on
March 31, 2025 who bring in a wide range of skills and experience to the Board.

During the year under review, following are the list of Directors appointed or resigned from the
Board of the Company:

Sr.            Name of Status Date of Designation
No.        the Director appointment/

Resignation

1 Mr. Atul Mehra Appointed 03-09-2024 Director

2 Mr. Kersi Jamshed Appointed 03-09-2024 Independent Director
Tavadia

3 Mr. Baburao Busi Ceased 05-04-2024 Independent Director

The Board welcomes Mr. Atul Mehra and Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia on the Board of the Company
and places on record its deep appreciation to Mr. Baburao Busi, Independent Director of the
Company for his valuable contribution during his tenure associated with the Company.

Board Meetings:-

During the year under review, the Board of Directors (hereinafter called as the “Board”) met eight
(8) times viz. April 15, 2024, May 17, 2024, June 28, 2024, July 16, 2024, October 10, 2024, November
22, 2024, January 14, 2025 and January 21, 2025 and the intervening gap between the meetings
was within the timelines prescribed under the provisions of the Act.

The details of the attendance of the Board are as follows:
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Name of the Director Number of Board Number of Meetings
Meetings Entitled to Attend Attended

Mr. Subrat Mohanty 8 7

Ms. Bhumika Batra 8 8

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak 8 8

Mr. Pranav Haridasan 8 8

Mr. Puneet Sharma 8 6

Mr. Kumar Raghu 8 8

Mr. Atul Mehra* 4 2

Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia* 4 4

*Mr. Atul Mehra and Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia were appointed as Director and Independent
Director of the Company respectively w.e.f. September 03, 2024

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

With a view to have more focused attention on business and for better governance and
accountability; the Board has constituted the following mandatory committees viz. Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Non-Mandatory Committees viz. Risk Management Committee and Technology
committee.

The details of the committee composition, date of meetings and attendance of the members are
as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the end of financial year 2024-25, the Audit Committee comprised of following as it members:

Name of the Member Designation

Mr. Kumar Raghu Chairman

Ms. Bhumika Batra Member

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak Member

Mr. Puneet Sharma Member

Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia Member

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met four times viz: April 15, 2024, July 16, 2024,
October 10, 2024 and January 14, 2025.
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The details of the attendance of the Audit Committee Members are as follows:

Name of the Member Number of Audit Committee Number of Meetings
Meetings Entitled to Attend Attended

Mr. Kumar Raghu 4 4

Ms. Bhumika Batra 4 4

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak 4 4

Mr. Puneet Sharma 4 4

Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia* 1 1

* Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia was inducted as member of the Audit committee w.e.f.  October
10, 2024

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

As at the end of financial year 2024-25, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprised of
following as it members:

Name of the Member Designation

Ms. Bhumika Batra Chairman

Ms. Subrat Mohanty Member

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak Member

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met four times viz:
April 12, 2024, July 5, 2024, September 30, 2024 and December 19, 2024.

The details of the attendance of the NRC Members are as follows:

Name of the Member Number of NRC Meetings Number of Meetings
Entitled to Attend Attended

Ms. Bhumika Batra 4 4

Mr. Subrat Mohanty 4 3

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak* 4 4

* Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak was inducted as Member of NRC w.e.f. April 06, 2024.
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III. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR)

As at the end of financial year 2024-25, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
comprised of following as it members:

Name of the Director Designation

Ms. Bhumika Batra Chairperson

Mr. Pranav Haridasan Member

Mr. Puneet Sharma Member

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak Member

During the year under review, the CSR Committee met four times viz:  April 12, 2024, July 12,
2024, September 30, 2024 and January 9, 2025.

The details of the attendance of the CSR Committee Members are as follows:

Name of the Member Number of Meetings Number of Meetings
Entitled to Attend Attended

Ms. Bhumika Batra 4 4

Mr. Pranav Haridasan 4 4

Mr. Puneet Sharma 4 3

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak* 4 4

* Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak was inducted as Member of CSR w.e.f. April 06, 2024

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC)

As at the end of financial year 2024-25, the Risk Management Committee comprised of following
as it members:

Name of the Director Designation

Mr. Puneet Sharma Chairman

Mr. Hemantkumar Patel Member

Mr. Pranav Haridasan Member

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak Member

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee met four times viz: April 12,
2024, July 12, 2024, October 9, 2024 and January 9, 2025.
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The details of the attendance of the RMC Members are as follows:

Name of the Member Number of Committee Number of Meetings
Meetings Entitled to Attend Attended

Mr. Puneet Sharma 4 4

Mr. Hemantkumar Patel 4 4

Mr. Prasannan Keshavan# 4 3

Mr. Pranav Haridasan 4 4

Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak* 1 1

* Mr. Jagdish Saksena Deepak was inducted as member of the RMC w.e.f. October 10, 2024.

# Mr. Prasannan Keshavan ceased to be member with effect from January 17, 2025.

V. TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

Technology committee was reconstituted at Board level w.e.f. October 10, 2024 and following
are members of committee:

NAME OF THE MEMBER DESIGNATION

Mr. Kersi Tavadia Chairman

Mr. Pranav Haridasan Member

Ms. Mangalam Ganesh Member

Mr. Arnab Biswas Member

Mr. Rajiv Prabhakar Member

Mr. Baiju Budhwani Member

Mr. Anuj Shah Member

Mr. Selven Rodrigo Member

During the year under review, the Technology Committee met two times viz: November 18,
2024 and January 3, 2025.

The details of the attendance of the Technology Members are as follows:
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Name of the Member Number of Committee Number of Meetings
Meetings Entitled to Attend Attended

Mr. Kersi Tavadia 2 2

Mr. Pranav Haridasan 2 2

Ms. Mangalam Ganesh 2 2

Mr. Prasannan Keshvan* 2 2

Mr. Arnab Biswas 2 2

Mr. Rajiv Prabhakar 2 2

Mr. Baiju Budhwani 2 2

Mr. Anuj Shah 2 2

Mr. Selven Rodrigo 2 1

* Mr. Prasannan Keshavan ceased to be member with effect from January 9, 2025.

Annual Evaluation:-

The Formal Annual Evaluation has been made as follows:-

During the year under review, the Independent Directors of the Company met on March 27, 2025
and April 9, 2025 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Members of
Management. At the said meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the process adopted for
conduct of Board performance evaluation as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the Committee) of the Company is the nodal
agency for conduct of said performance evaluation. The Committee Chairman reviewed and
approved the manner for conducting the said performance evaluation and also determined the
criteria for the same. On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) Chairman,
Management had appointed an External Agency Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India LLP for evaluating
the performance of the Board, Committees, Directors and its Chairman.

The performance evaluation of the Board was conducted on various aspects of the Board’s
functioning such as strategic planning, identification and management of risks, succession planning
and evaluation of management, audit & compliance, governance, relationship with executive
management of the Company, etc. The performance evaluation of the Committees was based
on criteria such as appropriate composition, clarity in terms of reference, regularity of meetings,
quality of discussion/deliberation at its meetings, participation of members etc. The performance
evaluation of Directors was carried out on various criteria such as attendance, participation at the
meetings, interpersonal relationship with other Directors, providing guidance, knowledge and
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understanding of areas relevant to the operations of the Company, etc. The Performance evaluation
of the Chairman was based on various aspects such as his knowledge and understanding of
applicable areas, his efficiency and quality outcome in Board Meetings, guidance to the Company
in strategic and critical matters, etc.

The outcomes were reviewed by the Committee and the Board was placed in their meetings  held
on April 23, 2025 and April 26, 2024 respectively and their observations/ feedback were conveyed
to the concerned stakeholders, for appropriate action.

Declaration by Independent Director:-

The Company has received the declarations from all the Independent Directors as per the
requirement of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the
Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the Criteria of Independence as laid down under Section
149(6) of the Act. These Directors have also empanelled as Independent Directors on the portal of
the Indian Institute of Corporate Directors as required under The Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019.

Key Managerial Personnel:-

As on March 31, 2025, Mr. Pranav Haridasan - Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Hemantkumar Patel –
Chief Financial Officer and Mrs. Komal Manoj Nagdev- Company Secretary are the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company in terms of Section 2 (51) of the Act.

During the year under review, there were no changes in Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the
Company.

SHARE CAPITAL:-

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company.
However, the company issued new 63,29,097 (Sixty Three lakh Twenty-Nine Thousand and Ninety
Seven only) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each (‘Rights equity shares’) for cash at a price
of Rs. 395/- including a premium of Rs. 385/- per share aggregating up to Rs. 249,99,93,315/- (Rupees
Two Hundred and Forty-Nine crore Ninety-Nine lakh Ninety–Three Thousand and Three Hundred &
Fifteen only) through Rights Issue to the existing Shareholders, resulting in an increase in the paid-up
capital to Rs.  1,50,82,90,970 (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Crore Eighty-Two Lakh Ninety Thousand
Nine Hundred Seventy Only).

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:-

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits pursuant to Section
73 and Section 76 of the Act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

As the Company does not carry out any manufacturing activities and its operations are not energy

intensive and hence information in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not provided in this Board’s Report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOWS:

During the year under review, the Company has spent Rs. 2.01 crore- in Foreign exchange towards

technology and other expenses. The Company has not earned any foreign exchange. The details

of the Foreign exchange outflow are enclosed in Annexure - A.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186:-

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans or guarantees pursuant to

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 other than Margin Funding to its own customers for equity

cash market purchases in the ordinary course of business. The particulars of investments made by

the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at the close of the financial year

are reflected in Note No. 8 of the Financial Statements. (Refer Financial Statements).

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER SUB – SECTION (1)
OF SECTION 188

Information as per Section 134(3)(h) of the Act relating to the particulars of Contracts or

Arrangements with Related Parties under Sub – Section (1)of Section 188 is as mentioned below:-

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length

basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant Related

Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or

other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at

large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus

approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of foreseen and

repetitive in nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted

are audited and a statement giving details of all Related Party Transactions are placed before the

Audit Committee.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-à-vis the Company. The

disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related

parties pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC – 2 is enclosed herewith as Annexure - B.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:-

The Company recognized the importance of good corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility in promoting and strengthening the trust of its clients, employees, society and other
stakeholders. The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities reflect its philosophy
of helping to build a better, more sustainable society by taking into account the societal needs of
the Community.

The Company’s CSR Policy has been framed in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder. The policy shall apply to all CSR programs undertaken/sponsored
by the Company, executed through Axis Bank Foundation. As part of its initiatives under “Corporate
Social Responsibility” (CSR), the Company has contributed/undertaken project namely Sustainable
Livelihood program.

Through this program, the Company aims at creating and enhancing livelihoods to contribute to
poverty alleviation and integrated development, especially in some of the most backward regions
of the country. The program also endeavors to promote better natural resource management,
income enhancement, promote community leadership, promote women empowerment, support
improvement in quality of life, and facilitate access to finance and access to markets and Skill
Development.

The program is identified as an ongoing program and the duration of the CSR Program would be
for a period of 4 years including the financial year in which the program has commenced viz. FY
2022-23 to FY 2025-26, which may be extended for such further period(s) as decided by the Board,
from time to time, in pursuance to the CSR Policy of the Company

The Sustainable Livelihood Program was executed through Axis Bank Foundation. The said project
is in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Company has spent Rs. 6.58 crores towards CSR activity
undertaken. For detailed report refer Annexure –C.

POLICY OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:-

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in compliance with Section
178 of the Act read along with the applicable rules thereto as amended from time to time. The
policy shall apply to all Directors (Executive and Non-Executive), Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy inter-alia laid downs the roles of
the Committee, criteria for appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management and parameters for determining the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, Senior Management and other employees, etc. The policy is available on the website
of the Company at:

h t t p s : / / s i m p l e h a i . a x i s d i r e c t . i n / i m a g e s / R e g u l a t o r y D i s c l o s u r e / P o l i c i e s /
NominationRemunerationPolicy.pdf
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:-

The statement containing the particulars of employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the
Act, read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 is set out
in an Annexure D and forms part of this report. In terms of Section 136 (1) of the Act, the report and
the accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any member
interested in obtaining a copy of the Annexure may send an e-mail to the Company Secretary at
companysecretary@axissecurities.in

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
& REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:-

The Company has in place a policy for Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal of Sexual Harassment at
workplace which is in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

All employees are covered under this policy. The Company has constituted an Internal Complaint
Committee for its Head office and branches under Section 4 of the captioned Act.

The details of the number of complaints filed and resolved during the year are as under:-

a. Number of complaints received during the year (2024-25) : 1

b. Number of complaints disposed off during the year : 1

c. Number of cases pending for more than 90 days : NIL

d. Number of workshops or awareness programs carried
out against sexual harassment : 41

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:-

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby
state and confirm that:

i. The applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the annual
accounts and proper explanations have been furnished, relating to material departures.

ii. Accounting policies have been selected, and applied consistently and reasonably, and
prudent judgments and estimates have been made so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

iii. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records, in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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iv. The annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis.

v. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. Proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

COMPLIANCES:-

The Company’s policy on compliance with external regulatory requirements is backed by stringent
internal policies and principles to ensure, Inter alia, priority to clients’ interests over proprietary
interest, maintenance of confidentiality of client information and prevention of insider trading.

AUDITORS:-

i. Statutory Auditors:

The Shareholders of the Company at the 17thAnnual General Meeting of the Company held
on June 22, 2023, approved the appointment of M/s. Singhi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 302049E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years  and will
continue to act as Statutory Auditors for the FY 2025-26.

The observation(s) made in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not
call for any further comments under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

The Statutory Auditors Report for FY 2024-25 does not contain any qualifications, reservations,
or adverse remarks, or disclaimers. The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of
fraud to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Act,
during the year under review.

ii. Secretarial Auditors and their Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s. Pramod S. Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (FCS:334/COP
No. 3804), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year under
review. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the FY 2024-25 is annexed herewith as
Annexure –E.

The Secretarial Audit report for FY 2024-25 does not contain any qualifications, reservations or
adverse remarks or disclaimers.

During the year under review, there was no fraud reported by the Secretarial Auditor to the
Audit Committee or the Board of Directors under section 143(12) of the Act.
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iii. Internal Auditors:-

The Company has in place an internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of internal

controls with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an

independent, objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of

the organization’s risk management, control and governance processes. Pursuant to the

provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014, the Company has appointed M/s. BY & Associates, Chartered Accountants to undertake

the Internal Audit of the Company for the financial year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:-

The Company’s policy on Corporate Governance is as under:

i. To enhance the long term interest of its shareholders, provide good management, adopt

prudent risk management techniques and comply with the applicable regulatory requirements,

thereby safeguarding the interest of its other stakeholders such as customers, employees,

creditors and vendors.

ii. To identify and recognize the Board of Directors and the Management of the Company as

the principal instruments through which good corporate governance principles are articulated

and implemented.

iii. To also identify and recognize accountability, transparency and equality of treatment for all

stakeholders, as central tenets of good corporate governance.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE-

Indian Capital Markets

FY25 was a year of dual narratives for Indian equity markets. The first half was characterised by a

strong upward trajectory, with the Nifty 50 reaching an all-time high of 26,216 on September 26,

2024. This milestone helped India cross the $5 trillion mark in market capitalisation for the first time,

positioning it as the fifth-largest equity market globally. This achievement reflected the strength of

India’s macroeconomic fundamentals, consistent policy narrative, robust domestic and foreign

liquidity, and broad-based earnings momentum supported by healthy high-frequency indicators.

However, the second half of the year brought elevated volatility. Market sentiment was impacted

by the slowing momentum in economic indicators, moderation in corporate earnings off a high

base, valuation-driven FPI outflows, rising global bond yields and dollar strength, trade policy

uncertainty, and geopolitical comparisons. Despite these challenges, the Nifty 50 ended the year
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with a 5.3% gain. Mid- and small-cap indices also posted respectable gains of 7.5% and 5.4%
respectively, although with increased volatility and dispersion in performance.

Retail Broking Industry

The market rally in the early part of FY25 contributed to a strong uptick in retail participation, with
24 million new demat accounts opened in the first half alone. However, this momentum moderated
as the year progressed, and volatility increased. Total demat accounts opened for the year stood
at approximately 39 million.

The industry also saw structural shifts in response to regulatory interventions by SEBI, aimed at
enhancing investor protection and promoting more balanced market participation, particularly in
the derivatives segment. These steps are expected to contribute positively over the long term,
even as they moderated activity levels in the near term.

Primary markets, too, mirrored this trend. While the headline numbers remained robust—with 78
companies raising  1.6 trillion through IPOs, more than 2.5 times the FY24 figure—the bulk of this
mobilisation was skewed towards the first half of the year. Volatility and shifting investor sentiment
in the latter half led to a more selective and cautious primary market environment.

After delivering strong double-digit earnings growth in FY24, Indian corporates faced downgrades
in FY25 projections. Key contributing factors included delayed capital expenditure, weather-related
disruptions, higher inflation, softer urban demand, and moderating credit growth. As a result, Nifty
earnings growth for FY25 is expected to settle in the 3–5% range—potentially the slowest since the
post-pandemic recovery began.

Looking ahead to FY26, we see a more constructive environment taking shape. Measures such as
a cumulative 50 bps CRR cut by the RBI, consumption-focused initiatives in the Union Budget, and
improved liquidity conditions provide the foundation for a potential recovery in corporate earnings
and market confidence.

Looking Ahead

With many domestic headwinds having been addressed, the path forward will increasingly be
shaped by global macroeconomic conditions. Key risks to monitor include evolving trade policies,
elevated valuation levels despite recent corrections, and the absence of immediate catalysts for
a broad-based rally.

Within this environment, a clear sectoral divergence is likely to emerge. Domestically oriented
sectors appear relatively well-positioned given their limited sensitivity to external trade policy shifts.
Export-oriented sectors, on the other hand, may see more calibrated participation depending on
how global dynamics unfold. Market breadth is expected to remain narrow in the near term, with
investors focusing on sector rotation and earnings visibility.
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Nifty 50 trades at 19x forward 12-month earnings, modestly above its five-year average of 18.8x.
Within this valuation framework, large-cap equities—particularly high-quality businesses with strong
fundamentals, dominant positions in their segments, and a domestic demand orientation—appear
better poised to deliver relative outperformance.

In summary, while FY25 presented its share of challenges, the foundational strength of India’s
economy and capital markets remains intact. We believe that FY26 offers a more favourable
backdrop for investors and businesses alike, underpinned by policy support, improved liquidity,
and a gradual recovery in earnings momentum.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:-

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the all the applicable Secretarial
Standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

DISCLOSURES UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 / RULES THEREUNDER –

• During the year, the Company has not filed any application or no such proceeding is pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

• During the year, the Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules thereunder.

• During the year with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Independent Auditors’ Report.

• During the year, there were no instances of one-time settlements with any banks or financial
institutions during the year. As a result, there is no difference between the valuation amount at
the time of one-time settlement and the valuation amount when taking out loans from these
entities.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:-

The Company did not have any funds specified under section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013,
lying unpaid or unclaimed. Accordingly, there were no funds that were required to be transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE OPERATIONS:

There is no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future operations.
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ANNEXURE-A

PARTICULARS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTFLOWS

Name of the Party Particulars of Purpose Amount of outflow
(Rupees in Crores)

FY 2024-25

Personal Alchemy Training 0.08

Insead Training 0.25

Elasticsearch BV Membership and subscription 0.23

Apnic Pty Ltd Membership and subscription 0.01

Infinhub Market Professional Service(Research Content
Technologies Fz LLC Portfolio Analysis) 1.44

Total  2.01

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Subrat Mohanty
Chairman
DIN: 08679444

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 08, 2025
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ANNEXURE - B

FORM AOC - 2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub–section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

a) Name (s) of the related party and nature of
relationship : NIL

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions : NIL

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions : NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any : NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions : NIL

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board : NIL

g) Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed
in general meeting as required under first proviso : NIL
to Section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

a) Name (s) of the related party and nature of : 1. Axis Finance Limited
relationship (Group Company)

2. Axis Asset Management
Company Limited
(Common director / Group
Company)

3. Axis Bank Limited
(Holding Company)

4. Axis Capital Limited

(Group Company)

5. Freecharge Payment
Technologies Private Limited

6. Max Life Insurance Company
Limited

7. Axis Trustee Services Limited

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions : 1. Availing and Rendering of
services
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2. Availing and Rendering of
services

3. Availing and Rendering of
services, Sale, Purchase or
supply of any goods or
materials, allotment/
redemption of shares,
reimbursement of Expenses.

4. Availing and Rendering of
services

5. Reimbursement of Expenses.
Availing and Rendering of
services

6. Availing and Rendering of
services and Dividend Income

7. Availing and  Rendering of
services

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / : 1. Continuous
transactions 2. Continuous

3. Continuous
4. Continuous
5. One time
6. Continuous and One-Time
7. Continuous

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements : 1. Refer Financial statements
or transactions including the value, if any

e) Date (s) of approval by the Board, if any : April 15, 2024

f) Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Subrat Mohanty
Chairman
DIN: 08679444

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 08, 2025
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ANNEXURE - C

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

(For the FY 2024-25)

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]

1. Brief Outline on the CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities reflect its philosophy of helping
to build a better, more sustainable society by taking into account the societal needs of the
Community.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sr. Name of Designation/Nature Number of meetings Number of meetings
No Director of Directorship of CSR Committee of CSR Committee

held during the year attended during the year

1. Ms. Bhumika Chairperson- 4 4
Batra Independent  Director

2. Mr. Pranav Member - Managing 4 4
Haridasan Director & CEO

3. Mr. Puneet Member -  Director 4 3
Sharma

4. Mr. Jagdish Member - 4 4
Saksena Independent  Director
Deepak

2. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.axissecurities.in

3. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:  Not Applicable

4. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. 3,28,79,20,134/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
Rs. 6,57,58,403 /-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years- Nil

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any- Not Applicable

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 6,57,58,403 /-

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Rs. 6,57,60,000/-
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(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 6,57,60,000/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: Rs. 6,57,60,000/-

             Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VII as per second
Financial Year subsection (6) of section 135. proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135.
(in Rs.)

Amount Date of transfer Name of Amount Date of transfer
the Fund

6,57,60,000 NA NA NA NA NA

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No.                                              Particular Amount (in Rs.)

1. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
sub-section (5) of section 135 6,57,58,403

2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 6,57,60,000

3. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities
of the previous Financial Years, if any Nil

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial
Years: Not Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per subsection (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

Bhumika Batra Pranav Haridasan
Chairperson, CSR Committee Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 03502004 DIN: 02733184

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 08, 2025 Date : May 8, 2025



26

A Subsidiary of AXIS BANK

ANNEXURE - E

Form No. MR-3
 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the year ended 31st March, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014]

To,

The Members,

Axis Securities Limited,

Unit 002, Building - A, Agastya Corporate Park,

Piramal Realty, Kamani Junction, Kurla West,

Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Axis Securities Limited CIN
U74992MH2006PLC163204 (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year from 01st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
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(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time; (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
and amendments from time to time;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 read with the Companies Act,2013 and dealing with client
and

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers) Regulations, 1992;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Research Analysts) Regulations, 2014;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulation, 2020;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investment Advisers) Regulations 2013;

(vii) We are informed that, during the year, the Company was not required to initiate any
compliance related action in respect of the following laws/rules/regulations/standards, and
was consequently not required to maintain any books, papers, minute books or other records
or file any form/ returns thereunder:

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
and

(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards-1 & Secretarial Standards-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India, and

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. (“SEBI LODR”) 2015 to the extent issuance of Commercial Paper in
accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India operational circular
bearing number SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2024/54 dated May 22, 2024.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

(I) Board Process:

1. The Board of Directors of Company as on 31st March 2025 comprised of:

(i) One Executive Director,

(ii) Three Non- Executive Non- Independent Directors, and

(iii) Four Non- Executive Independent Directors, including a woman Independent Director.

2. The processes relating to the following changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
and Key Managerial Personal during the year were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act:

(i) Cessation of the term of Mr. Baburao Busi (DIN: 00425793) as an Independent Director of
the Company was effective from 05th April, 2024, and was noted by the Board through a
circular resolution on 06th April, 2024. The same was subsequently recorded in the Board
Meeting held on 15th April, 2024.

(ii) Change in Designation of Mr. Subrat Mohanty (DIN: 08679444) from Additional Director
of the Company to the Director of the Company and was approved by the Shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting held on 14th June, 2024.

(iii) Change in Designation of Mr. Puneet Mahendra Sharma (DIN: 06964749) from Additional
Director of the Company to the Designated Director of the Company and was approved
by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 14th June, 2024.

(iv) Change in Designation of Mr. Kumar Raghu from Independent (Additional) Director of
the Company to the Independent Director of the Company for period of five years i.e.
from 20th March, 2024 to 19th March, 2029 and was approved by the Shareholders in
Annual General Meeting held on 14th June, 2024.
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(v) Appointment of Mr. Atul Mehra as an Additional Director of the Company was approved
by the Board at its meeting held on 16th July 2024. However, this appointment was subject
to approval from the Regulatory Authority. The appointment became effective from
03rd September, 2024, upon receipt of necessary regulatory approval.

(vi) Appointment of Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia as an Additional Director and Independent
Director of the Company was approved by the Board at its meeting held on 16th July
2024. This appointment was also subject to approval from the Regulatory Authority and
became effective on 03rd September, 2024, upon receipt of the necessary regulatory
approval.

(vii) Change in Designation of Mr. Atul Mehra Additional Director of the Company to the
Director of the Company and was approved by the shareholders in Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 16th October, 2024.

(viii) Change in Designation of Mr. Kersi Jamshed Tavadia Independent (Additional) Director
of the Company to Independent Director of the Company for period of five years i.e.
03rd September, 2024 to 02nd September, 2029 and was approved by the shareholders in
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 16th October, 2024.

3. Notice of Board and its committee meetings were sent to Directors at least seven days in
advance as required under Section 173(3) of the Act and SS-1, except for three meetings
which were convened at a shorter notice as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent to Directors at least seven days in advance
as required, for the following items were either circulated separately less than seven days
before or at the Board meetings and consent of the Board for so circulating them was duly
obtained as required under SS-1:

(i) Supplementary agenda notes and annexures in respect of unpublished price sensitive
information such as audited financial statement/ results, unaudited financial results and
connected papers, and

(ii) Additional subject/ information/ presentations and supplementary notes.

5. A system exists for Directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings.

6. We note from the minutes verified that, at the Meetings of Board held during the year:

(i) Majority decisions were carried through; and

(ii) No dissenting views were expressed by any Board member on any of the subject matters
discussed, that were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
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(II) Compliance mechanism:

There are reasonably adequate systems and processes in the Company, commensurate
with the company’s size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. There is scope for further improvement
in the compliance systems and processes, commensurate with the increasing statutory
requirements and growth in operations.

(III) Specific events/ actions:

During the year, the following specific events/ actions having a major bearing on the
company’s affairs took place, in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations
and standards:

(i) Board of Directors has noted the Cessation of term of Mr. Baburao Busi as an Independent
Director of the Company via Circular resolution on 06th April, 2024 and was subsequently
recorded in the Board Meeting held on 15th April, 2024.

(ii) Approval of Board was accorded for further Issue of Equity Shares to the existing
Shareholders of the Company on Right Basis at Board Meeting held on 17th May, 2024 .
The Company had proposed to offer 63,29,097 Equity Shares to the existing Shares holders
at a price of    Rs. 395/- including premium of Rs. 385/- per share aggregating up to Rs.
249,99,93,315/- (Rupees Two Hundred and Forty-Nine crore Ninety-Nine lakh Ninety–Three
Thousand and Three Hundred & Fifteen only) n the ratio of 438 rights equity shares for
every 10,000 equity shares.

(iii) Approval of Members was accorded by way of Special Resolution passed at Annual
General Meeting held on 14th June, 2024 for revision in remuneration paid to Mr. Pranav
Haridasan as Managing Director and CEO of the Company.

(iv) Approval of Members was accorded by way of Special Resolution passed at the Extra
ordinary General Meeting held on 22nd April, 2024 for the following:

a. Increase in borrowing limit of the Company u/s 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act,
2013 to Rs. 13,000 crores [Rs. Thirteen Thousand Crore only].

b. Creation of charges of the Assets of the Company u/s 180(1) (a) of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the borrowings of the Company up to an amount of Rs. 13,000 crores
[Rs. Thirteen Thousand Crore only].

c. Increase in limit under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 for amount of total
loans or investments made, guarantees given and securities to Rs. 10,000/- crores
(Rupees Ten Thousand Crores Only).



31

A Subsidiary of AXIS BANK

(v) Approval of Board was accorded to approve the allotment of 63,29,097 Equity Shares to
the existing shareholders of the Company on Right basis at Rs. 395/- per shares via circular
resolution on 17th June, 2024 and was subsequently noted in the Board Meeting held on
28th June 2024. As a result, the Company’s paid-up capital increased to  1,50,82,90,970/
- (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Crore Eighty-Two Lakh Ninety Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy
Only).

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the period, all the decisions in the Board Meetings were passed with requisite majority.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has not undergone any specific events/
actions that may have a major impact on the Company’s affairs.

Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Pramod S. Shah-Partner
Place : Mumbai Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Date  : April 05, 2025 FCS No.: 334

C P No.: 3804
UDIN.: F000334G000035776

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ to MR-
3 and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A from MR-3

To

The Members

Axis Securities Limited,
Axis House, 8th Floor,
Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg,
Worli Mumbai 400025, MH, IN

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards are the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures
on test basis.

6. As regard the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the
provisions referred to in our Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 the adherence and
compliance to the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of the filing of various
forms, reports, returns and documents that need to be filed by the Company with various
authorities under the said regulations. We have not verified the correctness and coverage of
the contents of such forms, reports, returns and documents.

7. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Pramod S. Shah-Partner
Place : Mumbai Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Date  : April 05, 2025 FCS No.: 334

C P No.: 3804
UDIN.: F000334G000035776



33

A Subsidiary of AXIS BANK

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members

Axis Securities Limited,

Report on the Audit of the  Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements (“Financial Statements”) of
Axis Securities Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance
sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid  Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended  (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
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Our Audit Approach:

With the assistance of our IT Specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the
Company’s IT Applications, databases and
operating systems relevant to the financial
reporting and the control environment. Our
audit approach was combination of test of
internal controls and substantive procedures
on the areas of the IT infrastructure, which
majorly focused access security (including
controls over privileged access), program
change controls, database management
and network operations.

In particular, our activity included the
following:

General IT controls design, observation and
operation

• Understood the changes made in the IT
environment during the year and
ascertained its effect on the financial
statements controls and accounts.

• Tested key controls operating over the
information technology in relation to
financial accounting and reporting
systems, including system access and
system change management, program
development and computer operations.

matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Financial Statements.

Key audit matters

The Company’s key financial accounting
and reporting processes are highly
dependent on the automated controls over
the Company’s information system, such that
there exists a risk that gaps in the Information
Technology General Control environment
could result in a misstatement in the financial
accounting and reporting records.

Accordingly, we have considered user
access management, segregation of duties
and control over system change over key
financial accounting and reporting systems,
as a key audit matter.

(1) Information Technology (IT) systems & Control

Sr.
No

How the Key audit Matter was
addressed in our audit
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How the Key audit Matter was
addressed in our audit

Key audit mattersSr.
No

User access controls operation:

• Obtained management’s evaluation of
the access rights granted to applications
relevant to financial accounting and
reporting systems and tested resolution of
a sample of expectations.

 • Further, we assessed the operating
effectiveness of controls over granting,
removal and appropriateness of access
rights.

Application controls:

• We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated controls
critical to financial accounting and
reporting.

• For any identified deficiencies, tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls and, where
necessary, extended the scope of our
substantive audit procedures.

• Our tests also included testing of the
compensating controls or alternate
procedures to assess whether there were
any unaddressed IT risks that would
materiality impact the Financial
Statements.

• Considered the reports for certain
applications on test check basis, as issued
by the professional consultants with
respect to VAPT testing done on such
applications.

• Considered the reports issued by the
professional consultants with respect to
Information Systems (IS) Audit and IT
Infrastructure of the Company and of
certain applications at group level
relevant for the company.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Directors Report but does not
include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These reports are expected
to be made available to us after the date of our auditor’s report. Our opinion on the Ind AS
Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. When we read the other information included in the above
reports, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and determine the actions under
the applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

8. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
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material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

10.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

10.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

10.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

10.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

10.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial
Statements.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
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all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A”,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

15.1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

15.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

15.3. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

15.4.  In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

15.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors in the meeting dated April 15, 2025, none
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

15.6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

15.7. In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has
been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

16. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as under:
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16.1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2025 on its
financial position in its Financial Statements – Refer Note 36 to the Financial Statements;

16.2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

16.3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

16.4. (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement

16.5. The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed any dividend for the year
which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

16.6. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.  Additionally, the audit trail has
been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Place: Mumbai Shweta Singhal
Date: April 15, 2025 Partner
UDIN: 25414420BMLEIY2677  Membership No: 414420
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditors Report of even date to the
members of Axis Securities Limited (the “Company”) in the Financial Statements as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2025 under the heading “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
requirements”.

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment and relevant details
of Right–of–use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Intangible Assets.

(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the operations of the Company and no material discrepancies
were noticed during the verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the
Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company is primarily engaged in broking business. Accordingly, it does not hold any
inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
Basis the information and explanation provided to us and basis our audit procedures
undertaken, we have not come across any difference between the information submitted
in the quarterly returns / statements filed by the company with such banks or financial
institutions when compared with the books of account and other relevant information
provided by the Company.

iii. (a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans and stood guarantee
during the year and details of which are given below:
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(  in Lakhs)

Particulars Guarantee Security Loans# Advances in
Nature of Loans

Aggregate amount
granted /provided
during the year

- Subsidiaries – – – –
- Joint Ventures – – – –
- Associates – – – –
- Others – – 5,72,521 –

Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries – – – –
- Joint Ventures – – – –
- Associates – – – –
- Others – – 3,96,716 –

# excluding interest accrued and expected credit allowances.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that investments made during the
year and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans during the year are, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, during the year the Company
has not provided guarantees, given security and granted loans and advances in the
nature of guarantees to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion
the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts have been generally regular during the year ended March 31,
2025.

(d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans, provided by the
Company, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days as on March
31, 2025.

(e) There were no loans granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership’s or any
other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.
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iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to loans and investments. Further, as no guarantees/security has been given towards
the parties specified in section 185 clause with regard to these matters are not applicable to
the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and hence the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, are not
applicable to the Company. We are informed by the management that no order has been
passed by the Company Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India
or any Court or any other Tribunal against the Company in this regard.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Thus, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, Professional Tax, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) that
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for disputed income tax
dues as tabulated below:

Name of Nature of Dues Amount Period to which Forum where the
the Statue (Rs. in lakh)  the amount relates disputes  are

pending

Income Tax Income Tax 24$ Assessment Year The company is in
2020– 2021 the process of filling

an appeal with the
Income Tax Appellate

Tribunal (ITAT)

                       $Refer Note 36(4) for details.
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viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which
have not been recorded in the books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender.

(b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not been
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis do not seem to have been utilized during the year for long-term purposes.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. According
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3
(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and
hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) According to the information, explanations and representations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by the secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.
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xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit
issued to the Company till the date of Auditor’s Report for determining the nature, timing
and extent of audit procedures.

xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as
referred to in Section 92 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non – banking financial or Housing finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios disclosed in Note 50 to the Financial Statements, ageing and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, undrawn credit lines, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
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management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Also refer to the Other Information paragraph of our main audit report which explains that the
other information comprising the information included in annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

xx. (a) There are no unspent CSR amounts on account of ongoing projects or other than ongoing
projects for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6)
of section 135 of the said Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 43 to the Financial
Statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 43 to the Financial
Statements.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures of the
Company and hence the paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Place: Mumbai Shweta Singhal
Date: April 15, 2025 Partner
UDIN: 25414420BMLEIY2677  Membership No: 414420
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred in paragraph 15.6 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of AXIS
SECURITIES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2025 based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
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included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
the financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to The Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Place: Mumbai Shweta Singhal
Date: April 15, 2025 Partner
UDIN: 25414420BMLEIY2677  Membership No: 414420
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Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025 (  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Notes As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
 2025  2024

ASSETS

1 Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 26,402 21,923

(b) Bank balances other than note 3 above 4 2,53,959 1,41,488

(c) Receivables

 Trade receivables 5 50,315 45,188

(d) Loans 6 3,95,473 4,04,706

(e) Investments 7 32,117 24,321

(f) Other financial assets 8 22,964 77,330

Total Financial Assets 7,81,230 7,14,956

2 Non - Financial Assets

(a) Current tax assets (net) 9 705 1,147

(b) Property, plant and equipment 10 5,698 4,657

(c) Right-of-use-asset 42 4,941 4,911

(d) Capital work-in-progress 10 346 70

(e) Intangible assets under development 10 566 217

(f) Other intangible assets 10 1,849 1,512

(g) Other non-financial assets 11 2,825 2,283

Total Non- Financials assets 16,930 14,797

Total Assets 7,98,160 7,29,753
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Balance sheet continued (  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Notes As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
 2025  2024

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1 Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables 12

(I) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises – –
(ii) total outstanding dues other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 88,947 74,324
(II) Other payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 27 23

(ii) total outstanding dues other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 14,639 9,705

(b) Debt securities 13 3,68,915 4,28,747
(c) Borrowing (other than debt securities) 14 15,071 6
(d) Lease liabilities 42 5,898 5,730
(e) Other financial liabilities 15 86,707 67,945

Total Financials Liabilities 5,80,204 5,86,480
2 Non - Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 16 212 96
(b) Provisions 17 2,124 1,777
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 4,431 2,735
(d) Other non- financial liabilities 19 3,445 3,698

Total Non-Financials Liabilities 10,212 8,306
3 EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 20 15,083 14,450
(b) Other equity 21 1,92,661 1,20,517

Total Equity 2,07,744 1,34,967
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,98,160 7,29,753

Summary of material accounting policy 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E

Shweta Singhal Subrat Mohanty Pranav Haridasan
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. :- 414420 DIN No: 08679444 DIN No:  02733184

Place : Mumbai Hemantkumar Patel Komal Manoj Nagdev
Date  :  15 April 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2025
(  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Revenue from operations

(i) Brokerage and fee income 22 87,675 70,119

(ii) Interest income 23 77,199 43,047

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 24 343 445

Total Revenue from operations 1,65,217 1,13,611

(iv) Other income 25 556 787

Total Income 1,65,773 1,14,398

Expenses:

(i) Finance costs 26 41,014 22,620

(ii) Fees and commission expenses 27 11,572 6,836

(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 28 560 1,162

(iv) Employee benefits expense 29 35,759 27,443

(v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 30 3,881 3,308

(vi) Other expenses 31 16,270 12,437

Total expenses 1,09,056 73,806

Profit before tax 56,717 40,592

Tax expense:

(i) Current tax (14,795) (11,027)

(ii) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 38 –

(iii) Deferred tax charged/ (credit) 195 555

Total tax expense (14,562) (10,472)

Profit for the year 42,155 30,120
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Statement of Profit and Loss continued
(  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of defined employee

benefit plan (283) (211)

(b) Fair value gain on investment in equity shares 7,796 3,379

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss (1,891) (797)

Other Comprehensive Income 5,622 2,371

Total comprehensive income for the year,

[comprising profit/ (loss) and other

comprehensive income for the year] 47,777 32,491

Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of

share  10 per share) 34

Basic (in  ) 28.20 20.84

Diluted (in  ) 28.20 20.84

Summary of material accounting policy  2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E

Shweta Singhal Subrat Mohanty Pranav Haridasan
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. :- 414420 DIN No: 08679444 DIN No:  02733184

Place : Mumbai Hemantkumar Patel Komal Manoj Nagdev
Date  :  15 April 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2025 (  in Lakhs)

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A. Equity Share Capital
Opening Balance 14,450 14,450
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors – –
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period – –
Changes in equity share capital during the year 633 –
Closing Balance 15,083 14,450

Balance as at 1 April, 2023
Profit for the year

Items of OCI for the year (net of tax impact) :

Fair value gain on investment in equity shares
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Any other changes:
Additions during the year (net)

Transfer to general reserves (refer note 51)

Balance as at 31 March, 2024
Balance as at 1 April, 2024
Profit for the year

Items of OCI for the year (net of tax impact) :
Fair value gain on investment in equity shares

Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Any other changes:

Additions during the year (net)

Transfer to general reserves (refer note 51)
Balance as at  31 March 2025

Capital
reserve

4
–

–
–

4

–

4
4

–
–

4

–

–
4

Securities
premium

1,525
–

–
–

1,525

–

1,525
1,525

–

–

1,525

24,367

–
25,892

General
reserve

4,749

  –
                    –

       4,749

     –

                  124

    4,873
      4,873

        –

                    –

4,873

      –

                    12
4,885

Retained
earnings

 70,496
 30,120

 –
 –

1,00,616

 –

 –

 1,00,616
1,00,616

 42,155

 –

 –

 1,42,771

 –

 –
 1,42,771

Equity In-
struments

through
Other

Compre-
hensive
Income

11,146

2,528

 –

13,674

–

–

13,674
13,674

5,834

–

19,508

–

–
19,508

Other
Compre-

hensive
Income

(76)
–

–

(157)

(233)

(233)
(233)

–

(212)

(445)

–

–
(445)

Deemed
Equity

182
–

–

–

182

–

(124)

58
58

–

–

58

–

(12)
46

Total

88,026
30,120

2,528

(157)

1,20,517

–

–

1,20,517
1,20,517

42,155

5,834

(212)

1,68,294

24,367

–
1,92,661

B. Other Equity (  in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E

Shweta Singhal Subrat Mohanty Pranav Haridasan
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. :- 414420 DIN No: 08679444 DIN No:  02733184

Place : Mumbai Hemantkumar Patel Komal Manoj Nagdev
Date  :  15 April 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Reserves and Surplus
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Cash flow statement for the year ended  31 March 2025
(  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxes 56,717 40,592

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation amortization and impairment 3,881 3,308

Net loss/ (gain) on derecognition of Property, plant and equipment 92 47

Interest income (17,345) (6,978)

Impairment on financial instruments 476 907

Interest expense 40,159 22,119

Operating profit before working capital changes 83,980 59,995

Adjustments for changes in working capital

(Increase) / Decrease in other bank balances (95,171) (43,592)

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (5,649) (21,912)

Decrease / (Increase) in loans 9,279 (2,56,148)

Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets 54,366 (75,615)

(Increase) / Decrease in securities for trade – 3,310

(Increase) / Decrease in other non financial assets (542) (900)

Increase in payables 19,561 44,009

Increase in other financial liabilities 18,762 43,034

(Decrease) / Increase in provision 64 223

(Decrease) / Increase in other non financial liabilities (253) 1,364

Cash (used in) / generated from operations 84,397 (2,46,232)

Income tax paid (net) (14,199) (10,948)

Net cash (used in) / generated from Operating activities (A) 70,198 (2,57,180)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress (3,500) (2,447)

Proceeds from sale / purchase of Property, plant and equipment 4 9

Purchase of intangible assets incl. intangible under developments (1,336) (751)

Net cash (used in) / generated from Investing activities (B) (4,832) (3,189)
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Cash flow statement cntd.... (  in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Cash flow from Financing activity

Interest paid on borrowings (925) (1,893)

Payment towards lease liabilities (1,475) (1,090)

Issuance of Equity share along with securties premium 25,000 –

Proceeds / (repayments) from Borrowing other than debt securities (net) 15,000 (12,500)

Proceeds / (repayments) from issuance of commercial paper (net) (98,487) 2,80,705

Net cash (used in) / generated from Financing activities (C) (60,887) 2,65,222

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4,479 4,853

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,923 17,070

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26,402 21,923

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of :

Balances with banks:

– In current accounts 26,402 21,923

– Balance in prepaid cards* – –

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 26,402 21,923

* Amount is less than fifty thousand

(i) The above Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set
out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) - 7 Statement of Cash Flows’ notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended).

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of Cash in hand and Cash at
bank.

(iii) Refer note 49 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 2 to 68

As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E

Shweta Singhal Subrat Mohanty Pranav Haridasan
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. :- 414420 DIN No: 08679444 DIN No:  02733184

Place : Mumbai Hemantkumar Patel Komal Manoj Nagdev
Date  :  15 April 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1 Corporate Information

Axis Securities Limited (‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provision of Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is
engaged in the business of broking, providing margin trading funding, distribution of financial
products and advisory services. The Company is a depository participant of National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) and is also registered
as a portfolio manager with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Company is
registered as a Mutual Fund Advisor with Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI) and acts
as a corporate agent with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (“IRDA”).
The Company is debt listed public limited Company and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Axis
Bank Limited (the “Parent”). The registered office address of the Company is Axis house, 8th
Floor, Wadia international centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai 400025.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are being authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors passed at their meeting held on April
15, 2025.

2 Basis of Preparation

(I) Statement of Compliance

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers
conferred by section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Furthermore, the guidance notes/
announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also
applied.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(II) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency
of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates.

Except as otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Indian rupees has been
rounded to the nearest lakhs. Transactions and balances with values below the rounding
off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as “0” in the relevant notes to
these financial statements.
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(III) Presentation and Disclosures of the financial statements

The Balance Sheet, The Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and loss
are presented in the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III of the Companies Act,
as amended from time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS. The statement of Cash
flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows”.

An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current)
and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non–current) is presented in Note 33.

(IV) Basis of Preparation / measurement

The financial statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern basis
using accrual basis of accounting and under the historical cost convention except for certain
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or present value, as the case
may be.

(V) Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and disclosures
as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses
for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the Company becomes aware of the changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation
and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable. Any revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised.

The critical estimates and judgements that have significant impact on the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities at each Balance Sheet date are enumerated in Note 2(IV).

Measurement of Fair Value

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values
for, both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value of a
financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3 Material Accounting Information

(i) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognized when Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurements

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, deposits, debt securities and
borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades,
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account.
The Company recognises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when funds reach the
Company.

The Company recognizes all the financial assets and liabilities at its fair value on initial
recognition; In the case of financial assets not valued at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

(b) Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Company’s business model for
managing the asset. On Initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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-  Amortized Cost (AC)

-  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

-  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period, the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial Assets at Amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

- The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to Cash and Bank balances, Trade receivables, Loans and Other financial
assets of the Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method “EIR”.

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL:

The financial assets are classified as FVTPL if these do not meet the criteria for classifying at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Further, in certain cases to eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (accounting mismatch), the Company irrevocably
designates certain financial instruments at FVTPL at initial recognition. In case of financial
assets measured at FVTPL, changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit &
loss.

Financial Assets measured at FVOCI:

The Company classifies the financial assets as FVOCI if the contractual cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the
Company’s business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling
financial assets. In case of equity instruments irrevocably designated at FVOCI, gains / losses
including relating to foreign exchange, are recognised through other comprehensive income
except dividend income which is recognised in profit and loss. Further, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income remain permanently in equity
and are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit & loss on de-recognition.

(c) Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities and Equity

The Company classifies these instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with substance of the Contractual terms of the Instruments.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Equity:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity

after deducting all its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at

the face value and proceeds received more than the face value are recognised as securities

premium.

Financial liabilities

The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if
it is classified as held  for  trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

All financial liabilities of the Company are categorized as subsequently measured at amortized
cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method.

All financial liabilities of the Company are categorized at fair value are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit and loss statement.

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI (Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest) and the business model test. The Company determines
the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these
are managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the
objective of the business for which the asset was held. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved investment strategy that
triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value being recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise.

Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method –

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of
loans taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the financial instruments. This estimation, by nature, requires an

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments,
as well as expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

(d) De-recognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

(e) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(f) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss model (ECL) for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for the financial assets which are not
measured at FVTPL. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial
assets are credit – impaired. The financial asset is ‘credit  impaired’ when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. The Company considers that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 90 days past due. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the Contractual cash flows.

(ii) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model
as set out in Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to determine when to

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025



61

A Subsidiary of AXIS BANK

recognize revenue and at what amount. Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in the contract with a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when services are provided and it is
highly probablethat a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to occur.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised when(or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer
obtains control of that asset.

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue the
amount of the transaction price (excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated
to that performance obligation.

The Company applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

• Identification of contract(s) with customers;

• Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

• Determination of transaction price;

• Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

• Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources :

(a) Brokerage Income

Revenue recognition for brokerage fees can be divided into the following two categories:

1) Brokerage fees – point in time

Brokerage income on securities is recognized as per contracted rates at the execution of
transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date.

2) Brokerage fees – over the time

Fees earned for the provision of services are recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered. These include
brokerage fees which is fixed at inception irrespective of number of transaction executed.
The revenue for such contracts is recognised on consumption of benefits and the balance
unutilized plan value is recognised on maturity/ validity of plan.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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(b) Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the
securities to the applicant.

(c) Portfolio management fees

Portfolio management fees are recognised on accrual basis as follows:

- In case of fixed percentage of the corpus/ fixed amount, income is accrued over the
period of the agreement.

- In case of fee based on the returns of the portfolio, income is accounted on each
anniversary date specified in the portfolio Agreement

- In case of upfront non-refundable fees, income is accounted over a period of time.

The Company charges an early withdrawal fee when investors withdraw their invested funds
before a specified period, as per the agreed terms. This fee is recognized as revenue at the
time the withdrawal event occurs, as it represents the culmination of the Company’s right to
receive the fee.

(d) Depository fees and Services

Revenue from depository services on account of annual maintenance charges is accounted
over the period of performance obligation. Revenue from depository services on account of
transaction charges is recognised point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied.

(e) Interest income from Margin Trading Funding

Interest earned on Margin trading funding facility provided to the customers is recognised on
a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding from customers and the
rates applicable.

(f) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial instruments classified as fair value through
the profit or loss (FVTPL) held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognized as an
unrealized gain / loss under “Net gains/loss on fair value changes” under Revenue from
operations in the statement of Profit and Loss.

All realized gains or losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL is recognized as a realized gain / loss under “Net gains/loss on fair value changes”.

(g) Dividend Income

(h) (i) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment of the dividend is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Research and advisory income is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance
with the terms ofthe respective agreements entered into between the Company and
the counter party.

Interest is earned on delayed payments from customers and is recognised on a time
proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding from customers and the
rates applicable.

(iii) Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their
intended use. At the point when an asset is capable of operating at management’s intended
use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalized.

Advances given towards acquisition of a tangible assets outstanding at each reporting date
are shown as other non-financial assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation on each item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-
Line Method based on the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the management and is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided
up to the date of disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

All Property, plant and equipment costing less than Rs. 5,000 individually are fully depreciated
in the year of purchase.

For the following categories of assets, depreciation has been provided on the straight-line
method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets Estimated useful life

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period of the lease

Electrical fittings and other equipments 10 years

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Office equipments 5 years

Computers Hardware 3 years

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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For the following categories of assets, the Company has assessed useful life based on
management assessment, considering the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of asset,
the operating condition of asset, anticipated technological changes and utility in the business,
as below:

Assets Estimated useful life

Motor Vehicle 4 years

Mobile Equipment / Electronic Gadgets 2 years

The useful lives, residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment and the
depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these
expectations differ from previous estimates, such a change is accounted for as a change in
an accounting estimate.

(iv) Other Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets Under Development

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an intangible asset includes purchase price, non-refundable taxes and duties and
any other directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and
net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each reporting date. If the
expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation
is recognised prospectively.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets used for amortisation are:

Assets Estimated useful life

Computer Software 5 Years

All intangible assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 individually are fully amortised in the year of
acquisition.

(v) Impairment of non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an assets or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into count, if available. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(vi) Leases

The Company as lessee

The Company leased assets primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses
at inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term lease. At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

Lease Term

Ind AS 116 – Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period
of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option
is reasonably certain. The Company makes assessment on the expected lease term on lease
by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend
or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease
term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying to the
Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure
that the lease term reflects the current econo4mic circumstances.

Lease Liability

The lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet.

The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset) whenever:

- The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

- A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

Right of Use (ROU) Assets

The ROU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
impairment losses, if any. Right of use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straightline basis.

(vii) Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense as per the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs
incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of those property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which
they are incurred. The difference between the discounted amount mobilized and redemption
value of commercial papers is recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the life of
the instrument using the EIR.

(viii) Employee Benefits

(a) Short term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits include salaries and short-term cash bonus. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or target-based incentives
if the Company has a present legal or constrictive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These
costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss at the undiscounted
amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the
Company.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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(b) Defined Contribution Plan

The Defined contribution plans are the plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts
to separate funds and does not have any legal or constrictive obligation to pay additional
sums.

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company is statutorily required to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of an
employee to a provident fund as part of retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions
are charged to the Statement of profit and loss of the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due.

The Company makes contributions towards National Pension Scheme (“NPS”) which is a defined
contribution retirement benefit plans for employees who have opted for the contribution
towards NPS.

The Company also makes contribution towards Employee State Insurance Scheme (“ESIC”)
which is a contributory scheme providing medical, sickness, maternity, and disability benefits
to the insured employees under the Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 in respect of qualifying
employees.

(c) Defined Benefits Plan

The Company pays gratuity, a defined benefit plan, to its employees whose employment
terminates after a minimum period of five years of continuous service on account of retirement
or resignation.

The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is
provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The gratuity
fund is funded. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. These
assumptions include salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets
and mortality rates.

(d) Share Based Payments Transactions

Axis Bank Limited (“the Bank”) grants employee stock options to the eligible employees of the
Company. The schemes provide for grant of options to employees of the Group to acquire
the equity shares of the Bank that vest in cliff vesting or in a graded manner and that are to be
exercised within a specified period. In accordance with, SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 and the Guidance Note on “Accounting for Employee Share-based
payments” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India the Bank has started
charging share-linked instruments on fair value method instead of intrinsic value for all
instruments granted after the accounting period ending March 31, 2021. The fair value of the
stock-based compensation is estimated on the date of grant using Black- Scholes model and
is charged to the company over the vesting period.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

The share of the company’s capital contribution reimbursed to the Bank is recorded as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Share based payments to employees in
Employee benefits expenses.

(ix) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in
OCI.

Current Income Tax

Income tax expense is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity or OCI, in which case the tax effect is recognised in
equity or OCI. Income tax payable on profits is based on the applicable tax laws in each tax
jurisdiction and is recognised as an expense in the period in which profit arises. Current tax is
the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax
rates enacted for the reporting period and any adjustment to tax payable/receivable in respect
of previous years. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amounts for tax purposes. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised, for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised, such reductions are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

The tax effects of income tax losses, available for carry forward, are recognised as deferred
tax asset, when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be set-off. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(x) Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupees.
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue transactions are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies
are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Non - monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated at reporting
date.

(xi) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

The Company’s business is to provide broking services, to its clients, in the capital markets in
India. All other activities of the Company are ancillary to the main business.

(xii) Provisions

Provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined
based on management estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date,
supplemented by experience of similar transactions. These are reviewed at the balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. The actual outflow of
resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

(xiii) Contingent liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Bank Guarantee:  Bank Guarantee are taken from banks and kept with exchanges as a margin
to meet the margin obligation.

(xiv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand,
balances with the banks and demand deposits with bank with an original maturity of three
months or less, and accrued interest thereon.
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3. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand – –

Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and
cash equivalents)

– In current accounts with Banks 26,402 21,923

– Balance in prepaid cards* – –

Others

Total 26,402 21,923

* Amount is less than fifty thousand

4. Bank balances other than Note 3 above

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Bank balances

Fixed deposit with original maturity less than 3 months – 305

Fixed deposits with banks more than 3 months but less than 12 months 2,49,827 1,32,746

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 20 6,194

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 4,112 2,243

Total 2,53,959 1,41,488

Fixed deposits under lien with stock exchanges amounted to  106,667 lakhs (March 31, 2024 :
 40,710 lakhs)

Kept as collateral security towards bank guarantees issued amounted to  68,950 lakhs (March
31, 2024 :  61,200 lakh)

Kept as collateral security against bank overdraft facility amounted to  74,210 lakh (March
31, 2024 :  22,340 lakh)

Fixed deposit with Bank free from any lien NIL (March 31, 2024 :  14,975 lakh)

Kept as deposit with other regulatory amounted to  20 lakhs (March 31, 2024 :  20 lakh)

5. Trade Receivables

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
  (  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

(a) Receivable considered good – Secured 37,673 19,300

(b) Receivable considered good – Unsecured 14,367 27,230

(c) Receivable – credit impaired 106 77

Less:  Impairment Loss Allowances (1,831) (1,419)

Total 50,315 45,188

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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a) Additional disclosure of Trade receivables (refer note no. 52)

b) No trade or other receivable are due from directors of the company either severally
or  jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a
member.

6. Loans

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

A. At Amortised Cost

Margin Trading Funding 3,97,460 4,06,739

Less : Impairment Loss Allowances (1,987) (2,033)

Total 3,95,473 4,04,706

I) Secured by

i) Secured by tangible assets

Collateral in the form of cash, securities, Fixed Deposit

Receipt (FDR), collateral of approved securities in case

of Margin trading funding 3,97,460 4,06,739

ii) Unsecured – –

Total gross (i) + (ii) 3,97,460 4,06,739

Less : Impairment Loss Allowances (1,987) (2,033)

Total Net 3,95,473 4,04,706

II) Loans in India
Margin Trading Funding 3,97,460 4,06,739

Total Gross 3,97,460 4,06,739

Less : Impairment Loss Allowances (1,987) (2,033)

Total Net 3,95,473 4,04,706

B. At fair value through other comprehensive income – –

C. At fair value through profit or loss – –

D. At fair value designated at fair value through profit or loss – –

Total (A) + (B) + (C) + (D) 3,95,473 4,04,706

Note: These receivables are lien marked towards working capital demand loans and Bank
overdraft facilities. (Refer note no. 56 and 64)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

7. Investments

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Investment in India

Equity Instruments (Un–quoted)

Max Life Insurance Company Limited 32,117 24,321

Qty : 19,188,128 (31st March 2024 19,188,128)
Equity shares of Rs 10 each

Total 32,117 24,321

8. Other Financial Assets

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Security deposit
–Unsecured , considered good 925 830

–Unsecured , considered doubtful – –

925 830

Less: Provision for doubtful receivable – –

925 830

Margin money with clearing member 18,830 74,413

18,830 74,413

Others

Accrued Income (Net) 3,122 1,961

Others 87 126

Total 22,964 77,330

9. Current Tax assets (net)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Advance income-tax (net) 705 1,147

(net of provision for tax of 16,543 Lakhs

(Previous Year :  12,852 Lakhs)

TOTAL 705 1,147
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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11. Other non-financial assets

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Others
Capital advances 28 21

Advance to employees 31 15

Advance to supplier 532 324

Prepaid expenses 1,491 1,187

Balances with statutory / government authorities 743 736

Total 2,825 2,283

12. Payables

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises – –

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 88,947 74,324

Other Payable
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises 27 23

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 14,639 9,705

(Refer note no. 48 and 53)

Total 1,03,613 84,052

13. Debt Securities

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

At amortised Cost
Debt securities in India

Commercial papers – Unsecured 3,74,700 4,37,500

Less: Unamortised discount (5,785) (8,753)

Total 3,68,915 4,28,747

Commercial paper (unsecured)
Amount outstanding 3,68,915 4,28,747

Tenure 26 – 365 days 70 – 365 days

Rate of interest 7.78% to 8.02% 8.10% to 8.88%

Repayment schedule At maturity At maturity

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Note : The Company has issued the Commercial Papers (CP) for the purpose of financing
margin trading funding book and for working capital requirements and the CP proceeds are
used for the disclosed purpose.(Refer note no. 59 & 64 for additional disclosure)

14. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

At amortised Cost

Secured Loans

Working capital demand loans

–From Bank 39 6

–Others 15,032 –

(Secured against charge on margin trading facility
receivables and book debts and a lien on fixed deposits)

Total 15,071 6

Note :

1) The Company has borrowed OD facility from Bank for the purpose of financing margin
trading funding book, meeting the exchange obligation and for working capital
requirements and proceeds are used for the disclosed purpose.

2) The above figure include interest accrued but not due on bank overdraft and working
capital demand loan from Financial institution Rs. 71 Lakhs ( March 31, 2024 Rs. 6
Lakhs)(Refer note no. 59 & 64 for additional disclosure)

15. Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Payables

– Due to holding company 1,756 762

– Due to others 9,513 10,920

Deposit from Sub–broker 467 362

Salary & incentive payable 49 58

Margin money received from client 74,549 55,411

Sundry creditors for capital expenditure 22 6

Book Overdraft 24 –

Others 327 426

Total 86,707 67,945

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

16. Current Tax Liabilities (net)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Income Tax payable 212 96

Total 212 96

17. Provisions

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Provision for employee benefits

Salary & employee benefits 10 120

Gratuity payable 514 365

A 524 485

Others

Other Provisions 1,600 1,292

B 1,600 1,292

Total (A) + (B) 2,124 1,777

18. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax Assets
Impairment on Financial Assets 1,126 1,006

Provision on Social security code on Gratuity 261 188

On Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 306 306

Lease Liabilities 1,532 1,492

Employee benefits – OCI 150 79

Others – 30

3,375 3,101

Deferred tax liabilities
Gain on investment in equity shares – OCI 6,562 4,600

Right of use of assets 1,244 1,236

7,806 5,836

Net deferred tax asset /( liability) recognised on
the balance sheet (4,431) (2,735)
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19. Other non-financial Liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Other liabilities

Income received in advance 1,433 1,706

Undisputed statutory dues 2,012 1,992

Total 3,445 3,698

20. Equity Share Capital

Authorized Share Capital

Particulars                Equity Shares
(No. in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

At 1 April 2023 2,500 25,000
Increase/(decrease) during the year – –

At 31 March 2024 2,500 25,000
Increase/(decrease) during the year – –

At 31 March 2025 2,500 25,000

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up (No. in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Equity Shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 1 April 2023 1,445 14,450
Change during the year – –

At 31 March 2024 1,445 14,450

Changes during the year 63 633

At 31 March 2025 1,508 15,083

Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries / associates /
Promoters

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate
holding company and their subsidiaries/associates are as below:

During the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has issued equity shares to existing
shareholders on rights basis of 63,29,097 equity shares of  10 each at premium of  385 each
amounting to  25,000 Lakhs.
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Axis Bank Limited, the holding company and its nominees 15,083 14,450

1,508 Lacs (31 March 2024:1,445 Lacs)equity shares of 10/- each

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31 March, 2025

Name of the shareholder Nos. in Lakhs %

Axis Bank Limited, the holding company 1,508 100.00

and its nominees

31 March, 2024

Name of the shareholder Nos. in Lakhs %

Axis Bank Limited, the holding company 1,445 100.00

and its nominees

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other
declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding
represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Promoters name Axis Bank Ltd Axis Bank Lt

No. of shares (In Lakhs) Paid-up Equity Share Capital 1,508.00 1,445.00

% of Total shares 100.00 100.00

% of Changes during the year – –

21. Other Equity

    Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Capital Reserve
Opening balance 4 4
Add : Additions during the year (net) – –

Closing balance 4 4

Securities premium
Opening balance 1,525 1,525
Add : Additions during the year (net) 24,367 –

Closing balance 25,892 1,525

General reserve
Opening balance 4,873 4,749
Add : Additions during the year (net) 12 124

Closing balance 4,885 4,873

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Deemed Equity
Opening balance 58 182
Add : Additions / Transfer during the year (net) (12) (124)

Closing balance 46 58

Retained Earnings
Opening balance 1,00,616 70,496
Add / (Less): Other Comprehensive Income for the year – –
Add: Profit after tax for the year 42,155 30,120
Additions/ (Deletions) during the year – –

1,42,771 1,00,616
Less : Appropriations – –
- Dividend on equity shares – –
- Dividend distribution tax on equity dividend – –
- Transfer to general reserves – –

Closing Balance 1,42,771 1,00,616

Other Comprehensive Income (defined benefit plans)
Opening balance (233) (76)
Add : Additions during the year (net) (212) (157)

Closing balance (445) (233)

Equity Instruments through other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance 13,674 11,146
Add: Additions during the year (net) 5,834 2,528

Closing Balance 19,508 13,674

Total 1,92,661 1,20,517

Capital reserve

Capital reserve is created by capital profits of the company which is not kept for distribution
to the shareholders in the form of dividend. It has been created during the Business
Combinations in earlier years.

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is
utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual
transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations.
The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is
more than 10% of the paid up capital of the company for that year, then the total dividend
distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction
of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of
the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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transferred to general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements
of Companies Act 2013.

Deemed Equity (Refer note 51)

Deemed equity relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by
the holding company under its employee share option plan.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to
general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

Reservation of shares

There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale
of shares or disinvestments.

Dividend notes

During the year, the Company has not declared ay interim and final dividend.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income consist of gain /(loss) of equity instruments carried through FVTOCI
and remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefit plans.

22. Brokerage and Fee Income

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Brokerage income 64,959 56,277

Fee income * 12,093 4,797

Depository income 10,623 9,045

Total 87,675 70,119

* Includes Commision on sale of life insurance product Rs. 97 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 118
Lakhs) and general insurance product Rs. NIL ( March 31, 2024 Rs. 0.01 Lakhs)

23. Interest Income

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on loans 58,834 35,188

Interest on fixed deposits with banks 17,300 6,942

Other interest income 1,020 809

Interest on security deposits 45 36

Interest on securities held for trading – 72

Total 77,199 43,047

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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24. Net gain on fair value changes

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Investments
Profit on trading - Securities held for trading (net)
(fair value through P & L) 343 445

Total 343 445

Fair value changes
Realised 343 445
Unrealised – –

25. Other Income

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Miscellaneous income 556 787

Total 556 787

26. Finance Cost

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Bank guarantee commission 855 501

Interest on debt securities 38,655 19,762

Interest on borrowing other than debt securities 990 1,896

Interest expenses on lease liabilities 514 461

Total 41,014 22,620

27. Fees and commission expenses

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Sub brokerage and commission 6,644 5,381

Management fees on portfolio management services 4,928 1,455

Total 11,572 6,836

28. Impairment on financial instruments

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

On Financial Instruments measured at Amortised cost

Loans (46) 1,281

Trade & Other Receivable 522 (374)

Bad Debts 84 255

Total 560 1,162

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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29. Employee benefits expense

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Salaries, wages and bonus (Refer note 40) 32,894 25,592

Contribution to provident and other funds 1,075 849

Share based payments to employees (Refer note 51) 1,189 621

Staff welfare expenses 370 227

Gratuity expense 231 154

Total 35,759 27,443

30. Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 2,087 1,749

Amortization of other intangible assets 650 620

Amortization of right-of-use assets 1,144 939

Total 3,881 3,308

31. Other expenses

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(  in Lakhs) (  in Lakhs)

Account referral charges 1,168 841

Marketing and sales promotion 2,424 1,301

Auditors’ remuneration :
– Audit fee 25 21

– Out of pocket expenses 5 –

– Limited review fees 8 8

– Certification 1 1

Communication and call centre charges 1,497 1,113

Director’s sitting fees and commission 84 44

Expense towards Corporate Social Responsibility (Note 43) 658 530

Franking, stamp, registeration, KRA and exchange charges 713 697

Information technology expenses 4,627 3,534

Insurance 54 11

Legal and professional fees 1,065 691

Loss on sale of fixed assets 92 47

Membership & subscription fees 119 149

Error trades and other settlement cost 180 652

Printing & stationery 111 143

Recruitment and training expenses 597 258

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Rent, taxes and energy cost 535 389

Repair and maintenance and houskeeping charges 662 633

Royalty charges 223 159

Transaction charges 543 504

Travelling and conveyance 639 558

Other admin cost 240 153

Total 16,270 12,437

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A Financial Instruments - Fair Values

1 Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial instruments as at March 31,
2025 which are classified as Amortised cost, Fair value through profit and loss, Fair value
through other comprehensive Income:

At At Fair Value At Fair Total Total
Particualrs Amortised through value carrying Fair

Cost Profit or Loss through OCI value Value

Financial Assets

1 Cash and cash
equivalents 26,402 – – 26,402 26,402

2 Other Bank balances 2,53,959 – – 2,53,959 2,53,959

3 Trade receivables 50,315 – – 50,315 50,315

4 Loans 3,95,473 – – 3,95,473 3,95,473

5 Investments – – 32,117 32,117 32,117

6 Other financial assets 22,964 – – 22,964 22,964

Total 7,49,113 – 32,117 7,81,230 7,81,230

Financial Liabilities

1 Payables 1,03,613 – – 1,03,613 1,03,613

2 Debt Securities 3,68,915 – – 3,68,915 3,68,915

3 Borrowing (other than
debt securities) 15,071 – – 15,071 15,071

4 Lease Liabilities 5,898 – – 5,898 5,898

5 Other financial liabilities 86,707 – – 86,707 86,707

Total 5,80,204 – – 5,80,204 5,80,204

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial instruments as at 31 March, 2024
which are classified as Amortised cost, Fair value through profit and loss, Fair value through
other comprehensive Income:

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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At At Fair Value At Fair Total Total
Amortised through value carrying Fair

Cost Profit or Loss through OCI value Value

Financial Assets
1 Cash and cash equivalents 21,923 – – 21,923 21,923

2 Other Bank balances 1,41,488 – – 1,41,488 1,41,488
3 Trade receivables 45,188 – – 45,188 45,188
4 Loans 4,04,706 – – 4,04,706 4,04,706
5 Investments – – 24,321 24,321 24,321

6 Other financial assets 77,330 – – 77,330 77,330

Total 6,90,635 – 24,321 7,14,956 7,14,956

Financial Liabilities
1 Payables 84,052 – – 84,052 84,052
2 Debt Securities 4,28,747 – – 4,28,747 4,28,747
3 Borrowing (other than

debt securities) 6 – – 6 6
4 Lease Liabilities 5,730 – – 5,730 5,730
5 Other financial liabilities 67,945 – – 67,945 67,945

Total 5,86,480 – – 5,86,480 5,86,480

2 Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

The investments included in level 1 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using quoted
prices for instruments in an active market. The investments included in level 2 of fair value
hierarchy have been valued using valuation techniques based on observable market data.
The investments included in Level 2 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the income
approach and break-up value to arrive at their fair value. There is no movement between
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. There is no change in Inputs use for measuring Level 2 fair value.

The following table summarises financial instruments measured at fair value on recurring basis:

As at 31 March, 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Instruments
Investment in Equity Shares – 32,117 – 32,117

As at 31 March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Instruments
Investment in Equity Shares – 24,321 – 24,321

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 2
financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value. There were no transfers between
level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening Balance 24,321 20,942
Purchase – –
Less : Sales – –
Add : Gain /(Loss) 7,796 3,379
Transfer in – –
Less : Transfer from Level – (24,321)

 Closing Balance 32,117 –

Transfer from level 3 to 2 investment in Equity shares in previous year was based on availability
of market observable inputs. The Company's policy is to recognise transfers in to and transfer
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. Unobservable inputs
used in measuring fair value categorised within Level 2 and sensitivity of fair value measurement
to change in unobservable market data.

As at 31st March, 2025

Types of Financial Instruments Valuation Significant Range of
technique unobservable estimates for

input unobservable
input

Investment in unquoted equity shares Comparable Embedded Rs. 24,129
categorised at Level 2 Companies Value Lakhs

Method

Types of Financial Instruments Increase Change in Decrease in Change in
in unobser- fair value due unobservable fair value due
vable input to increase in input to decrease in

unobservable unobservable
input input

Investment in unquoted equity shares 5% Rs.176 5% Rs. 159
categorised at Level 2 per share per share

As at 31st March, 2024

Types of Financial Instruments Valuation Significant Range of
technique unobservable estimates for

input unobservable
input

Investment in unquoted equity shares Comparable Embedded Rs. 18,709
categorised at Level 2 Companies Value Lakhs

Method

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Types of Financial Instruments Increase Change in Decrease in Change in
in unobser- fair value due unobservable fair value due
vable input to increase in input to decrease in

unobservable unobservable
input input

Investment in unquoted equity shares 5% Rs. 133 5% Rs.120
categorised at Level 2 per share per share

Valuation Principal

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction in the principle (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date

under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether the price is directly

observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have

been derived, financial instruments are classified based on hierarchy of valuation techniques,

as explained in the note 2(V).

 Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

The fair value of shares on Margin Pledge and Withhold 10,05,602 12,75,461

Note: The above collaterals are held from the broking clients, for positions in equity segments.

3 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, loans and other financial assets. These are financial assets whose carrying amounts
approximate fair value, due to their short-term nature.

Additionally, financial liabilities such as trade payables and other financial liabilities are not
measured at FVTPL, whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-
term nature.

B Financial risk management

The Company has established a comprehensive system for risk management and internal

controls for all its businesses to manage the risks that it is exposed to. The objective of its risk

management framework is to ensure that various risks are identified, measured and mitigated

and also that policies, procedures and standards are established to address these risks and
ensure a systematic response in the case of crystallisation of such risks.

The Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is
managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring,  subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within
the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:

a) Credit Risk

b) Liquidity Risk

c) Market Risk

a) Credit risk

It is risk of financial loss that the Company will incur a loss because its customer or counterparty
to financial instruments fails to meet its contractual obligation.

The Company’s financial assets comprise of Cash and bank balance, Securities for trade,

Trade receivables, Loans, Investments and Other financial assets which comprise mainly of
margin money with clearing member deposits and accrued revenues.

The management has established accounts receivable policy under which customer accounts

are regularly monitored. The Company has a dedicated risk management team, which
monitors the positions, exposures and margins on a continuous basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from Company’s trade

receivable and loans.

Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and loans:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Trade and other receivables (net of impairment)  50,315 45,188

Loans (net of impairment) 3,95,473 4,04,706

Total 4,45,788 4,49,894

Trade receivable

The Company has followed simplified method of ECL in case of Trade receivables and the

Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute
a financing transaction. At each reporting date, the Company assesses the impairment

requirements.

Based on the business environment in which the entity operates and the management
assessment, the management considers that the trade receivables are in default if the payment
is more then 30 days overdue ( previous year 90 days).

The Company follows below probability of default percentage for ECL provision on trade
receivables

1) Overdue for more than 30 days but less than 90 days - - Probability of Default (PD) is

considered as 10% of the balance is credit impaired.

1) Overdue for more than 90 days but less then 180 days - Probability of Default (PD) is
considered as 50% of the balance is credit impaired.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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2) Overdue for more than 180 days - PD is considered as 100% of the balance is credit

impaired.

3) A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Trade receivables

Ageing of Trade receivable 0-30 31-90 91-180 More than Total

days days days 180 days

As at 31st March 2025
Carrying Value  50,019 207 222 1,698 52,146

ECL – (22)  (111)  (1,698)  (1,831)

Net Value  50,019 185 111 – 50,315

31 March, 2024

Carrying Value  44,619 393 353 1,242 46,607

ECL – – (177)  (1,242)  (1,419)

Net Value  44,619 393 176 – 45,188

Loans

Loans comprise of margin trade funding for which a staged approach is followed for

determination of ECL.

The Company assesses allowance for expected credit losses for loans. The ECL allowance is

assessed based on the 12 months expected credit loss. ECL is calculated on collective basis

for loans. The Company has not experienced any loss on its loan portfolio historically.

Accordingly the Company has applied 0.50% of ECL on the entire loan portfolio.

Following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Loan

Ageing of Loans 31-90 91-180 More than Total

days days 180 days

31-Mar-2025

Carrying Value  3,09,082  67,285  21,093 3,97,460

ECL  (1,546)    (336)   (105)   (1,987)

Net Value 3,07,536 66,949 20,988 3,95,473

31-Mar-2024

Carrying Value 3,76,038 24,931 5,770 4,06,739

ECL (1,879) (125) (29) (2,033)

Net Value 3,74,159 24,806 5,741 4,04,706

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Movements in the allowances for impairment in respect of trade receivables and loans is as
follows:

Particulars Carrying Carrying
amount amount

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

Opening balance 3,452 2,742

ECL Provision recognised/(reversed) 366 710

Closing Balance 3,818 3,452

Collateral held

The Company holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its credit
exposures. The following tables sets out the principal types of collateral held against different
types of financial assets.

Instrument Types                     Percentage of Exposure that is               Principal type of
                                                subject to collateral requirement               collateral held

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables and Loans 97% 94%  Equity Shares

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity represents the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its

financial obligations on time, both in normal and in stressed conditions, without having to

liquidate assets or raise funds at unfavorable terms thus compromising its earnings and capital.

Prudent liquidity risk management requires sufficient cash and marketable securities and

availability of funds through adequate committed credit facilities to meet obligations when

due and to close out market positions.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly

marketable investments in the form of bank deposits at an amount in excess of expected

cash outflow on financial liabilities.

Funds required for short period is taken care by borrowings through issuing Commercial paper

and utilising overdraft facility from Sanctioned credit lines from Axis Bank and Other Financial

institution.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial asset & liabilities as on

31 March 2025.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Less 6 to 12 1 to 5 More Total
Particualrs than 6 Months years than Carrying

Months 5 years Value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 26,402 – – – 26,402

Other balance with Bank 1,95,873 58,066 20 – 2,53,959

Securities for trade  – – – – –

Trade Receivables 50,315 – – – 50,315

Loans 3,74,486 20,987 – – 3,95,473

Investments – – – 32,117 32,117

Other financial assets 22,039 – 925 – 22,964

 Total 6,69,115 79,053 945 32,117 7,81,230

Financial liabilities

Payables 1,02,432 147 – 1,034 1,03,613

Debt Securities 3,50,238 18,677 – – 3,68,915

Borrowing (other than
debt securities) 15,071 – – – 15,071

Lease Liabilities 649 575 3,669 1,005 5,898

Other financial liabilities 86,218 22 467 – 86,707

 Total 5,54,608 19,421 4,136 2,039 5,80,204

 Net excess / (shortfall) 1,14,507 59,632 (3,191)  30,078 2,01,026

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial asset & liabilities as on
31 March 2024.

Less 6 to 12 1 to 5 More Total
Particualrs than 6 Months years than Carrying

Months 5 years Value

 Financial assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 21,923 – – – 21,923

 Other balance with Bank 73,368 61,926 6,194 – 1,41,488

 Securities for trade – – – – –

 Trade Receivables 45,188 – – – 45,188

 Loans 3,98,965 5,741 – – 4,04,706

 Investments – – – 24,321 24,321

 Other financial assets 76,500 – 830 – 77,330

 Total 6,15,944 67,667 7,024 24,321 7,14,956

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)



91

A Subsidiary of AXIS BANK

Financial liabilities

Payables 84,004 48 – – 84,052

Debt Securities 3,72,947 55,800 – – 4,28,747

Borrowing (other than
debt securities) 6 – – – 6

Lease Liabilities 373 326 4,779 252 5,730

Other financial liabilities 67,577 6 362 – 67,945

 Total 5,24,907 56,180 5,141 252 5,86,480

 Net excess / (shortfall) 91,037 11,487 1,883 24,069 1,28,476

c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

i  Foreign currency risk

The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure as at each reporting date.
Accordingly, foreign currency risk disclosure is not applicable.

ii  Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to Interest risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial
instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because
of fluctuations in the interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits with bank and loans
given to customers. Such instruments exposes the Company to fair value interest rate
risk. Management believes that the interest rate risk attached to this financial assets are
not significant due to the nature of this financial assets. All the borrowings of the company
are fixed interest rate bearing instrument and hence there is no impact of movement in
interest rate.

iii  Market price risk

The Company is exposed to market price risk, which arises from FVTPL investment in debt
securities. The management monitors the proportion of debt securities investments in its
investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio
are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the
appropriate authority.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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33. MATURITY ANALYSIS

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they
are expected to be recovered or settled.

ASSETS As at Within 12 After 12
31 March 2025 month month

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  26,402 26,402 –
Bank balance other than Cash and cash
equivalents  2,53,959 2,53,939 20
Securities for trade  – – –

Receivables
Trade receivables  50,315 50,315 –
Loans  3,95,473 3,95,473 –
Investments  32,117 – 32,117
Other financial assets  22,964 22,039 925

Total Financial assets  7,81,230 7,48,168 33,062

Non – Financial assets
Current tax assets (net)  705 – 705
Property, plant and equipment  5,698 – 5,698
Right–of–use–asset  4,941 – 4,941
Capital work–in–progress  346 – 346
Intangible assets under development  566 – 566
Other intangible assets  1,849 – 1,849
Other non–financial assets  2,825 744 2,081

Total Non– Financials assets  16,930 744 16,186

Total Assets  7,98,160 7,48,912 49,248

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

Payables

Trade payables

 (i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises  – –

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises  88,947 87,913 1,034

Other payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises  27 27 –

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises  14,639 14,639 –

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Debt Securities  3,68,915 3,68,915 –

Borrowing (other than debt securities)  15,071 15,071 –

Lease Liabilities  5,898 1,224 4,674

Other financial liabilities  86,707 86,240 467

Total Financials liabilities  5,80,204 5,74,029 6,175

Non – Financial liabilities

Current tax liabilities (net)  212 – 212

Provisions  2,124 523 1,601

Deferred tax liabilities  4,431 – 4,431

Other non– financial liabilities  3,445 2,012 1,433

Total Non–Financials liabilities  10,212 2,535 7,677

Total Liabilities  5,90,416 5,76,564 13,852

Net 2,07,744 1,72,348 35,396

* Non cash items has been considered under after 12 month period

ASSETS As at Within 12 After 12
31 March 2024 month month

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  21,923 21,923 –
Bank balance other than Cash and cash
equivalents  1,41,488 1,35,294 6,194
Securities for trade  – – –

Receivables
Trade receivables  45,188 45,188 –
Loans  4,04,706 4,04,706 –
Investments  24,321 – 24,321
Other financial assets  77,330 76,500 830

Total Financial assets  7,14,956 6,83,611 31,345

Non – Financial assets
Current tax assets (net)  1,147 – 1,147
Property, plant and equipment  4,657 – 4,657
Right–of–use–asset  4,911 – 4,911
Capital work–in–progress  70 – 70
Intangible assets under development  217 – 217
Other intangible assets  1,512 – 1,512
Other non–financial assets  2,283 736 1,547

Total Non– Financials assets  14,797 736 14,061

Total Assets  7,29,753 6,84,347 45,406

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

Payables

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises  – – –

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises  74,324 74,324 –

Other payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises  23 23 –

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises  9,705 9,705 –

Debt Securities  4,28,747 4,28,747 –

Borrowing (other than debt securities)  6 6 –

Lease Liabilities  5,730 699 5,031

Other financial liabilities  67,945 67,583 362

Total Financials liabilities  5,86,480 5,81,087 5,393

Non – Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)  96 – 96
Provisions  1,777 1,777
Deferred tax liabilities  2,735 – 2,735
Other non– financial liabilities  3,698 1,992 1,706

Total Non–Financials liabilities  8,306 3,769 4,537

Total Liabilities  5,94,786 5,84,856 9,930

Net 1,34,967 99,491 35,476

* Non cash items has been considered under after 12 month period

34. EARNING PER SHARE

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is given below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March

2025 2024

a) Net profit after tax 42,155 30,120

b) Weighted average nos. of equity shares outstanding
for basic & diluted EPS (nos. in lakhs) 1,495 1,445

c) Nominal value of equity shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

d) Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) (Rs.) 28.20 20.84

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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35. INCOME TAXES

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:

Particulars   For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

I. Profit or Loss section
(i) Current income tax:

Current income tax expense 14,795 11,027
Tax expense in respect of earlier years (38) –

(ii)  Deferred tax:
Tax expense on origination and reversal of
temporary differences (195) (555)

Income tax expense reported in Statement of

Profit or Loss (i + ii) 14,562 10,472

II. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section:   For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Tax on re-measurement of defined benefit plans
and Fair Value gain on equity shares 1,891 797

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss  – –

Income tax expense reported in the OCI section 1,891 797

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is as under:

A reconciliation of income tax provision to the amount computed by applying statutory
income tax rate to the income before taxes is summarised below:

Particulars     For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

(a) Profit before tax  56,717 40,592

(b) Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
(c) Income tax expenses calculated (c) = (a) * (b)  14,275 10,216
(d) Reconciliation items

(i)  Tax expense in respect of earlier years (38)  –
(ii)  Tax on expenses not tax deductible 399 310
(iii)  Impact of change in tax rate – –
(iv) Other items (74)  (54)

Total effect of tax adjustments [(i) to (iv)]  287 256

(e) Tax expense recognised during the year (e)=(c)+(d)  14,562 10,472

(f) Effective tax rate (f)=(e)/(a) 25.67% 25.80%

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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(c) The movement of deferred taxes assets and liabilities for the year is as under:

Particulars As at Recognised Recognised As at
31, March in profit or in OCI 31, March

2024 Loss 2025

Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)
i) Property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets 306 – – 306

ii) Provision for expected credit losses 1,006 120 – 1,126

iii) Provision for post–retirement benefit 79 – 71 150

iv) Provision for Social security code on Gratuity 188 73 – 261

v) Leases Transaction 286 2 – 288

vi) Fair value on strategic equity securities (4,600)  – (1,962)  (6,562)

Total (2,735)  195 (1,891)  (4,431)

Movement in Deferred Taxes assets and liabilities as at  31, March 2024

Particulars As at Recognised Recognised As at
31, March in profit or in OCI 31, March

2023 Loss 2024

Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)

i) Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 243 63 – 306

ii) Provision for expected credit losses 778 228 – 1,006

iii) Provision for post–retirement benefit 25 – 54 79

iv) Provision for Social security code on Gratuity – 188 – 188

iv) Leases Transaction 210 76 – 286

v) Fair value on strategic equity securities (3,749)  – (851)  (4,600)

 Total (2,493)  555 (797)  (2,735)

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITY :

Contingent Liabilities shall be classified as (to the extent not provided for):

Particulars Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a) Claims against the Company not
acknowledge as debt 1 – –

b) Disputed direct and indirect tax matters
under appeal  2 35 291

c) Bank Guarantee  3 1,37,400 1,22,400

Total 1,37,435 1,22,691

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Note 1:

The claims which are in dispute with the clients and where settlements are still pending and
not provided in the books of accounts has been contingent for the Company.

Note 2:

The statutory dues which are in dispute and where settlements are still pending and not
provided in the books of accounts has been contingent for the Company. The Company is
contesting the demands and the management believes that its position will likely be upheld
in the appellate process. No provision has been accrued in the financial statements for the
demand raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.

Note 3:

Bank Guarantee are being taken from banks and kept with exchanges as a margin to meet
the margin obligation.

Note 4:

The Company has received a notice under section 263 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, wherein
the CIT has disallowed a deduction of Rs. 97 Lakhs. The Company is filling as appeal with the
ITAT disputing the resultant tax demand of Rs. 24 Lakhs. Interest and penalty have not been
provided, as no demand notice has been issued pursuant to the CIT’s order.

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March, 2025 the Company has contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for. The estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) towards property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets is Rs 1,752 lakhs (previous year – Rs 1,494 lakhs).

38. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION:

Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Subscription charges 24 23

Training Expenses 33 8

Professional Fees 144 –

201 31

(There is no unhedged foreign currency exposure outstanding as on 31st March 2025 and 31st
March 2024)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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39. MAINTENANCE OF ELECTRONIC BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS

The Company has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended
on August 5, 2022 relating to maintenance of electronic books of account and other relevant
books and papers. The Company’s books of accounts and relevant books and papers are
accessible in India at all times and backup of accounts and other relevant books and papers
are maintained in electronic mode within India and kept in servers physically located in India
on daily basis.

40. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

           For the year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

A. Defined contribution plans
The Employee provident fund scheme of the company 1,075 849

is administered by Office of the Regional Provident Fund,

Commisioner. The Employee State Insurance Scheme

(“ESIC”) is a contributory scheme providing medical,

sickness, maternity, and disability benefits to the insured

employees under the Employees State Insurance Act,

1948. Company's contribution to provident fund, ESIC and

other  welfare funds

B. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity
Governance of the Plan
The Company has setup an income tax approved irrevocable trust fund to finance the
plan liability. The trustees of the trust fund are responsible for the overall governance of
the plan.

Funding arrangement and policy

The money contributed by the Company to the fund to finance the liabilities of the plan
has to be invested. The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management
of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages these
funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation
which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations. Due to the
restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by the fund, it is not possible to
explicitly follow an asset–liability matching strategy to manage risk actively. There is no
compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre fund the liability of the Plan. The
Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity and tax position
as well as level of under funding of the plan. The expected contribution payable to the
plan next year is Rs. 500 Lakhs (PY Rs. 200 Lakhs)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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a) The following table summarises the components of net expenses for gratuity benefits
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, other comprehensive income and the
amounts recognised in the balance sheet.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO)

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 909 622

Current service cost  212  151

Past Service Cost – –

Interest cost  59  40

Remeasurements (gains) / losses

Actuarial (gains) / losses :–

arising from changes in financial assumptions 129  22

arising from changes in demographic assumptions  16  3

arising from changes in experience adjustments  132  182

Benefits paid from plan assets  (76)  (81)

Liabilities assumed and settled  28  (30)

Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 1,409  909

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 544  496

Employer contributions  365  126

Interest on plan assets 40  37

Remeasurements gains / (losses)

Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net
Interest expense)  (6)  (4)

Benefits paid  (76)  (81)

Assest acquired / settled 28  (30)

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year  895  544

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

b) Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,409 909
Fair value of plan assets 895 544

Net liability 514 365

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024

c) The amounts recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss are as follows:

Service Cost:–
Current service cost 212 151

Total Service cost (i) 212 151
Net interest cost:–

Interest expense on DBO 59 40
Interest (income) on plan assets (40) (37)

Total Interest cost (ii) 10 3
Remeasurements of Other Long term benefits (iii)
Defined benefit cost included in Statement
of Profit & Loss (iv) = (i+ii+iii) 231 154

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening amount recognized in OCI outside
profit and loss account (i) 313 102

Remeasurements recognised in other
comprehensive income (OCI)

Due to changes in financial assumptions (ii) 129 22

Changes in demographic assumption (iii) 16 3

Due to changes in experience adjustments (iv) 132 182

Return on plan assets (excl. interest income) (v) 6 4
Total remeasurement in other comprehensive

income (OCI) (vi) = (ii+iii+iv+v) 283 211

Closing amount recognized in OCI outside

profit and loss account (vii) =(i +vi) 596 313

d) Assumptions used for Gratuity

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Discount rate 6.55% p.a. 7.15% p.a
Salary increase rate 10.00% p.a. 8.50% p.a.
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 7.00% p.a. 7.00% p.a.

e) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Insurer managed funds 895 544

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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f) Sensitivity Analysis

Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to
small changes in demographic assumptions. The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit
obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation
rate. The following table summarizes the change in defined benefit obligation and impact in
percentage terms compared with the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by
50 basis points.

                                      For the year ended
31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March

2025 2025 2024 2024

Increase by 50 basis points % Rate Amount % Rate Amount

i) Impact of change in discount rate (2.62)% 1,372 (2.16)% 889

ii) Impact of change in salary growth rate 2.26% 1,439 2.07% 927

Decrease by 50 basis points

i) Impact of change in discount rate 2.64% 1,444 2.25% 929

ii) Impact of change in salary growth rate (2.20%) 1,376 (2.02%) 890

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation
in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting
date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.

g) Projected plan cash flow

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current
membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

Maturity Profiler Rs. in Lakhs

Expected benefits for year 1  234.45
Expected benefits for year 2  227.10
Expected benefits for year 3  211.84
Expected benefits for year 4  191.08
Expected benefits for year 5  169.39
Expected benefits for year 6  145.18
Expected benefits for year 7  126.27
Expected benefits for year 8  107.23
Expected benefits for year 9  99.98
Expected benefits for year 10 and above  569.30

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 4.41 years.

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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h) Experience Adjustments
Particulars Period Ended

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Defined Benefit Obligation 414 530 622 909 1,409
Plan Assets                216 380 496 544 895

Surplus/(Deficit)             (198) (150) (126) (365) (514)

C. The Code on Social Security, 2021 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment
and post–employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2021. The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come
into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued.
The Company has assessed the impact of the Code and recorded estimated impact of the
same in the financial statements.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
Holding Company Axis Bank Limited
Key Management Mr. Pranav Haridasan (Managing Director and CEO)
Personnel (KMP) Mr. Babu Rao Busi (Independent Director upto 05.04.2024)
of the company Ms. Bhumika Batra (Independent Director)

Mr. Rajiv Anand (Director upto 16.01.2024)
Mr. Ravi Narayanan (Director upto 22.03.2024)
Mr. Jagdish Deepak Saksena (Independent Director)
Mr. Subrat Mohanty (Director w.e.f 05.03.2024)
Mr. Puneet Sharma (Director w.e.f. 05.03.2024)
Mr. Kumar Raghu (Director w.e.f. 20.03.2024)
Mr. Kersi Tavadia (Independent Director w.e.f 03.09.2025)
Mr. Atul Mehra (Director w.e.f 03.09.2025)
Mr. Hemantkumar Patel (Chief Financial Officer)
Mrs. Komal Manoj Nagdev (Company Secretary)

Other related parties where transactions have occurred during the year
Relatives of Key     Mrs Hina Hemantkumar Patel (Spouse of Hemantkumar Patel)
Management
Personnel

Fellow Subsidiaries Axis Capital Limited
Axis Trustee Services Limited
Axis Mutual Fund Trustee Limited
Axis Asset Management Company Limited
Axis Finance Limited
A.TREDS Ltd
FreeCharge Payment Technologies PVT LTD.
Axis Bank UK Ltd.
Axis Capital USA LLC
Axis Pension Fund Mangaement Limited

Post-employment Max Life Insurance Company Limited
benefit plan
Fellow Associates Max Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(  in Lakhs)

Transaction/Nature of Holding  Key Fellow Fellow Grand
Relationship Company Management Subsidiary Associates Total

Personnel

INCOME:–

Brokerage income 3 – – – 3

(2) – – – (2)

Brokerage income*– KMP – 0 – – 0

– – – – –

Brokerage income*– Relatives of KMP – 0 – – 0

– – – – –

Depository Charges income*– KMP – 0 – – 0

– – – – –

Depository Charges income*–
Relatives of KMP – 0 – – 0

– – – – –

Brokerage income–Axis Capital Limited – – 146 – 146

– – (80) – (80)

Brokerage income–Axis Finance Limited – – 8 – 8

– – (13) – (13)

Brokerage income–Axis Trustee
Services Limited – – – – –

– – (7) – (7)

Commission income–Max Life Insurance
Company Limited – – – 97 97

– – – (118) (118)

Interest on Fixed Deposits 4,068 – – – 4,068

(866) – – – (866)

Other income *–Axis Asset
Management Company – – 0 – –

– – – – –

Other income –Axis Finance Limited – – 5 – 5

– – (1) – (1)

EXPENDITURE:–

Reimbursement of expenses to 7,902 – – – 7,902

(3,326) – – – (3,326)

Reimbursement of expenses – Freecharge
Payment Technologies Private Limited – – – – –

– – (1) – (1)

Bank charges & other charges paid* 0 – – – 0

– – – – –

Interest on Bank Working capital
demand loans / Overdraft balance 472 – – – 472

(847) – – – (847)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Transaction/Nature of Holding  Key Fellow Fellow Grand
Relationship Company Management Subsidiary Associates Total

Personnel

Salary to – 783 – – 783

– (556) – – (556)

Directors Sitting Fees and commission – 84 – – 84

– (44) – – (44)

OTHER TRANSACTIONS:–

Issuance of Rights shares 25,000 – – – 25,000

– – – – –

Purchase of Securities 55,439 – – – 55,439

(22,588) – – – (22,588)

Gratuity Received 11 – – – 11

(1) – – – (1)

Gratuity Paid 10 – – – 10

– – – – –

Gratuity Paid–Axis Capital Limited – – – – –

– – (6) – (6)

Gratuity Received–Axis Capital Limited – – 1 – 1

– – (14) – (14)

Gratuity Received *– Freecharge
Payment Technologies Private Limited – – 10 – 10

– – – – –

Gratuity Paid *– Freecharge Payment
Technologies Private Limited – – – – –

– – – – –

Amount Received from – – 384 – 384

– – – – –

Advance Repaid / (Taken) – – – – –

3 – – – 3

Overdraft taken from 43,140 – – – 43,140

– – – – –

Overdraft repaid along with interest to 43,618 – – – 43,618

– – – – –

Purchase of Fixed Asset – – – – –

(13) – – – (13)

RECEIVABLES:–

Current account 26,250 – – – 26,250

(21,611) – – – (21,611)

Fixed deposit balance 55,556 – – – 55,556

(22,220) – – – (22,220)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
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Transaction/Nature of Holding  Key Fellow Fellow Grand
Relationship Company Management Subsidiary Associates Total

Personnel

Trade receivable *– Axis Finance Limited – – 0 – 0

– – (1) – (1)

Trade receivable *– Axis Asset
Management Co Ltd – – 0 – 0

– – – – –

–

Trade receivable – Max Life Insurance
Company Limited – – – 1 1

– – – (1) (1)

Investments# – – – 6,046 6,046

– – – (6,046) (6,046)

PAYABLES:– –

Overdraft Bank Balance – – – – –

(6) – – – (6)

Royalty Charges Payable 40 – – – 40

(52) – – – (52)

Trade payables – – – – –

(23) – – – (23)

Other payables 1,716 – – – 1,716

(710) – – – (710)

Notes:

1) As the liabilities for gratuity are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,
the  amount pertaining to the directors are not included above.

2) Figures in bracket represents corresponding amount of previous year.

3) *Amount is less than 50,000

4) #disclosed at cost of acquisition

5) Any amounts accrued towards expenses or income in respect of related party transactions
have been disclosed under the relevant heads. However, such amounts are not reported
under receivables or payables, as they are not accounted for as amounts due from or due to
such parties.

42 LEASES

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of timein exchange for consideration.

Company as Lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025
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conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases
(underlying asset of less than Rs 1,50,000). For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. The Company has recognised Rs.NIL (PY: Rs.NIL Lakhs) towards
short-term lease and Rs NIL (PY: Rs. NIL) towards low value assets during the year ended March
31, 2025.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the
Company. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment on whether it will exercise an extension
or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments of Rs 1,439 lakhs (PY Rs. 1,090 lakhs) have been classified as financing cash flows.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with
less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

2) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

3) Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions
are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases under Ind AS 17. Therefore, contracts that were not identified as
lease under Ind AS 17 were not re-assessed.
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4) Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar class of underlying asset in
a similar economic environment).

5) Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

The details of Right to use Asset of the Company are as follows:

Particulars                    For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,911 4,907
Addition during the year 1,320 945

Deduction during the year (146) (2)

Depreciation (1,144) (939)

Balance at the end of the year 4,941 4,911

Following is the movement in lease liabilities for the period:

Particulars                    For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,730 5,452

Addition during the year 1,276 903

Deduction during the year (175) (4)

Interest Expenses 514 461

Lease payments (1,447) (1,082)

Balance at the end of the year 5,898 5,730

Following is maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Particulars                    For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Not later than 1 month (179) (65)

Later than 1 month not later than 3 months (183) (146)

Later than 3 month not later than 1 year (862) (488)

Later than 1 year (4,674) (5,031)

(5,898) (5,730)

43. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold,
needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three
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financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. Axis Securities supports a
Sustainable Livelihoods Program executed through Axis Bank Foundation. The Sustainable
Livelihoods Program is implemented across the country. It’s designed to focus on creating
stable livelihoods for rural communities. It creates opportunities for small, marginal farmers
and the landless to enhance their incomes from agriculture and agriculture-allied work, natural
resource management, livestock, and via linkages for finance and to markets and skill
development for rural and semi-urban youth. The program’s vision is to create resilient
communities, with self-sustaining ecosystems that are managed by the very people they
benefit. Every initiative is designed and implemented according to the varied requirements
and aspirations of each community. This is achieved by working with several entities, ranging
from NGO partners, government departments and community institutions.

Particulars                    For the year ended 31 March,
2025 2024

a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 658 530

b) Amount spent during the period on

(i)   Construction/acquisition of any asset – –

(ii)  On purposes other than (i) above - in cash 658 530

c) Shortfall at the end of the year – –

d) Total of the previous year shortfall – –

e) Out of the above, contribution made to related party – –

44 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company’s operations predominantly related to equity, currency and commodity broking
and its related activities business and is the only operating segment of the Company. The
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the operations of the Company as one
operating segment. Hence no separate segment information has been furnished herewith.
The Company operates in one geographic segment namely “ Within India” and hence no
separate information for geographic segment wise disclosure is required. No single customer
accounts for the revenue, which is equal or more than ten percent of the total revenue of the
entity, hence no such segment could be identified.

45 REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMER

The Company derives revenue primarily from the share broking business. Its other major revenue
sources are the distribution income and Depository income.

In accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the revenue is
accounted in the following manner for each head: -

Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers for the year
ended 31 March, 2025 by type of revenue segregated into its operating segments. The
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Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors.

Nature of services

Broking Income : Brokerage income on securities is recognized as per contracted rates at the
execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date.Distribution Income :
Fees earned for the provision of services are recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered. These include
brokerage fees which is fixed at inception irrespective of number of transaction executed.
The revenue for such contracts is recognised on consumption of benefits and the balance
unutilized plan value is recognised on maturity/ validity of plan.

Selling commissions/ brokerage generated from primary market operations i.e. procuring
subscriptions from investors for public offerings of companies, mutual funds etc. are recorded
on determination of the amount due to the company, once the allotment of securities are
completed.

Portfolio management fees are recognised when corpus is offered for investment by the
customer. Subsequently fees are charged at contracted rates periodically. Further, fees are
charged on withdrawal of invested funds before a specified period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Interest is earned on
Margin trading funding facility provided to the customers and is recognised on a time proportion
basis taking into account the amount outstanding from customers and the rates applicable.

Depository fees are recognized based on completion of the transactions.

Sources of Revenue from Contract with Customers

Particulars                    For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Brokerage Income 64,959 56,277

Distribution Fees 12,093 4,797

Interest on Loan 59,854 35,997

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits 17,300 7,014

Depository Income 10,623 9,045

1,64,829 1,13,130

46 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard
business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the
capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, operating cash flows
generated and short term debt. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.
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47 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There are no material events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial
statements.

48 MICRO SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

The information required under the MSMED Act, 2006 has been disclosed to the extent such
parties have been identified by the Company based on the information available as at the
reporting date. Comparative figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever
necessary to align with the current year’s classification. The Company has not received any
claims for interest on delayed payments from vendors registered under the MSMED Act, 2006.
This representation has been relied upon by the auditor

Particulars                   For the year ended 31 March
2025  2024

The amounts remaining unpaid to any supplier at the
end of the year:

1. Principal amount – –

2. Interest amount – –

The amounts of interest paid by the buyer in terms of – –
section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small – –
suppliers beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period – –
of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining – –
unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and – –
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to
the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

49. CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Particulars April 1, Cash Flow Change in Others* March 31,
2024 Fair Values 2025

Debt Securities 4,28,747 (98,487) – 38,655 3,68,915
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Particulars April 1, Cash Flow Change in Others* March 31,
2023 Fair Values 2024

Debt Securities 1,28,280 2,80,705 – 19,762 4,28,747

* Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing
fees etc.

50. INFORMATION AS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO REGULATION 52(4) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

a. Key Financial information

Particulars                   For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Debt Equity Ratio1 1.88 3.24
Debt Service Coverage Ratio2 0.22 0.14
Interest Service Coverage Ratio3 2.43 2.87
Outstanding redeemable preference shares (quantity & value) NA NA
Capital redemption reserve/ Debenture redemption reserve NA NA
Net Worth4 (Rs in Lakhs) 2,07,744 1,34,967
Net Profit after tax (Rs in Lakhs) 42,155 30,120
Earnings Per shares (Basic and Diluted) (in Rs.) 28.20 20.84
(Face Value Rs. 10 per share)
Current ratio 1.30 1.17
Long term debt to working capital ratio5 Nil Nil
Bad debts to account receivable ratio 0.17% 0.56%
Current liability ratio 0.98 0.98
Total debt to total assets ratio 0.49 0.60
Trade receivable turnover ratio6 1.74 1.55
Inventory turnover ratio NA NA
Operating margin7 (%) 34.33% 35.73%
Net profit margin8 (%) 25.51% 26.51%

1 Debt Equity Ratio = Debt (Borrowings + Accrued Interest) / Equity (Equity share capital +
Other Equity)

2 Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Profit before interest and tax / (Interest expenses (excludes
interest costs on leases as per Ind AS 116 on leases) + Principal Repayments)

3 Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Profit before interest and tax / Interest expenses
(excludes interest costs on leases as per Ind AS 116 on leases)

4 Net Worth = Equity share capital + Other Equity
5 Company do not have any long term debt and hence the ratio is Nil
6 Debtors turnover ratio = Brokerage, Fees and Depository Income / Trade receivable
7 Operating margin = Profit before tax / Total revenue from operation
8 Net profit margin = Profit after tax / Total revenue from operation
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51. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Employee Stock Options granted by holding company

During the year, the Axis Bank has issued in 3,52,731 (Previous year: 1,94,125) stock options
directly to the employees of the Company. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding
Company has decided to recover the cost of options granted as on March 31, 2021 and there
after from the Company. Accordingly, the Company has repaid an expense of Rs. 1,189 Lakhs
(previous year (Rs. 621 Lakhs) for current financial year to Axis Bank.

The expense recognised for employee services (company’s employee) received during the

year is shown in the following table:

Particulars                   For the year ended 31 March
2025 2024

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment – –
transactions

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment 1,189 621
transactions where payment done to Axis Bank

1,189 621

52. TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING

As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding from the due date of payment / date of transactions

Particulars Less than 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than Total
6 months 1 year years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables

– considered good 50,449 603 376 546 66 52,040

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables

– which have significant

increase in credit risk – – – – – –

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables

– credit impaired – – – – – –

(iv)Disputed Trade Receivables

– considered good – – 53 16 17 106

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables

– which have significant

increase in credit risk – – – – – –
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(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables

– credit impaired – – – – – –

(vii) Unbilled Trade receivables

– consider good – – – – – –

(viii) Less: Impairment Loss

   Allowances (134) (603) (429) (562) (103) (1,831)

50,315 – – – – 50,315

As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding from the due date of payment / date of transactions

Particulars Less than 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than Total
6 months 1 year years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables

– considered good 45,365 473 623 66 3 46,530

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables

– which have significant

increase in credit risk – – – – – –

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables

– credit impaired – – – – – –

(iv)Disputed Trade Receivables

– considered good – – 25 1 51 77

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables

– which have significant

increase in credit risk – – – – – –

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables

– credit impaired – – – – – –

(vii) Unbilled Trade receivables

– consider good – – – – – –

(viii) Less: Impairment Loss

   Allowances (177) (473) (648) (67) (54) (1,419)

45,188 – – – – 45,188
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53. PAYABLES AGEING

As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding from the due date of payment / date of transactions

Particulars Provision Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) MSME 27 – – – – 27

(ii) Others 14,639 84,604 4,343 – – 1,03,586

(iii) Disputed Dues – MSME – – – – – –

(iv)Disputed Dues – Others – – – – – –

(v) Unbilled Dues – Others – – – – – –

14,666 84,604 4,343 – – 1,03,613

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding from the due date of payment / date of transactions

Particulars Provision Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) MSME 23 23 – – – 23

(ii) Others 9,705 79,619 4,410 – – 84,029

(iii) Disputed Dues – MSME – – – – – –

(iv)Disputed Dues – Others – – – – – –

(v) Unbilled Dues – Others – – – – – –

9,728 79,642 4,410 – – 84,052

54. Capital-Work-in Progress

a) Capital-Work-in Progress Ageing

As at 31 March 2025

      Amount in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress 346 – – – 346

(ii) Projects temporarly suspended – – – – –

346 – – – 346
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As at 31 March 2024

      Amount in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress 70 – – – 70

(ii) Projects temporarly suspended – – – – –

70 – – – 70

b) Capital-Work-in Progress Ageing where completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost
compared to its original plan

As at 31 March 2025

                To be completed in

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress – – – – –

(ii) Projects suspended – – – – –

– – – – –

As at 31 March 2024

                To be completed in

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress – – – – –

(ii) Projects suspended – – – – –

– – – – –

c) Intangible Assets under development Ageing

As at 31 March 2025

       Amount in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress 547 19 – – 566

(ii) Projects temporarly suspended – – – – –

547 19 – – 566

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)



116

A Subsidiary of AXIS BANK

As at 31 March 2024

       Amount in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress 217 – – – 217

(ii) Projects temporarly suspended – – – – –

217 – – – 217

d) Intangible Assets under development Ageing where completion is overdue or has
exceeded its cost compared to its original plan

As at 31 March 2025

                To be completed in

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress – 19 – – 19

(ii) Projects temporarly suspended – – – – –

– 19 – – 19

As at 31 March 2024

                To be completed in

Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years

(i) Projects in Progress – – – – –

(ii) Projects temporarly suspended – – – – –

– – – – –

55. Ratios:

Particulars 31st March 31st March
2025 2024

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) NA NA

(b) Tier I CRAR NA NA

(c) Tier II CRAR NA NA

(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio NA NA

56 a) No loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs
and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or
jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.
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b) There are no loans due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them
either severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

57 DETAILS OF BENAMI PROPERTY HELD

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding Benami Property.

58 The quarterly returns filed by the Company for fund based facilities availed from banks on the
basis of security of receivables are in agreement with the books of accounts.

59 WILLFUL DEFAULTER

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender during the current and previous financial year.

60 RELATIONSHIP WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

The Company do not have any transaction with the companies struck off during the current
and previous financial year.

61 REGISTRATION OF CHARGE OR SATISFACTION WITH REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES (ROC)

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period during the current and previous financial year.

62 COMPLIANCE WITH NUMBER OF LAYERS OF COMPANIES

Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, the provision of Section 2 clause 87 of the
Act, read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layer) Rules 2017, is not applicable to the
Company.

63 There are no Scheme of Arrangements placed before the Competent Authority in terms of
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 for approval during the current and previous
financial year.

64 UTILISATION OF BORROWED FUNDS AND SHARE PREMIUM

a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invested in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.
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b) The Company has not received any fund (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) from any party(s) (Funding Party(ies))with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.

65 UNDISCLOSED INCOME

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the current and previous financial year.

66 CRYPTO CURRENCY OR VIRTUAL CURRENCY

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or in Virtual currency during the
current and previous financial year.

67 RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

68 PREVIOUS YEAR COMPARATIVES

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary to conform
to current year’s presentation.
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